
TOWN OF WARWICK PLANNING BOARD 
August 20, 2008 

 
 

Members present:  Chairman, Benjamin Astorino 
                               Russell Kowal, Dennis McConnell 
                               Carl Singer 
                               Zen Wojcik, Tectonic Engineering 

John Bollenbach, Planning Board Attorney 
 
                                
 
 
The regular meeting of the Town of Warwick Planning Board was held Wednesday, August 20, 2008 at the 
Town Hall, 132 Kings Highway, Warwick, New York. Chairman, Benjamin Astorino called the meeting to order 
at 7:30 p.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OF Thomas Sobiech #2 
 

Application for Site Plan Approval and Special Use permit for the use of property as a 
staging yard – storage of construction vehicles, situated on tax parcels S 3 B 1 L 35.1, 
35.2, and 35.3; project located on the western side of County Route 1 between Mission 
Land Road and Brozdowski Lane,  in the AI/LB zones, of the Town of Warwick, County 
of Orange, State of New York.   Continued Public Hearing from the July 16, 2008 
Planning Board meeting. 
 
Representing the applicant:  Roger Lupino, Engineer.  Larry England, Chief Inspector of 
Millennium Pipeline Co., LLC.. 
 
The following review comments submitted by Tectonic: 
 
1. Board to discuss SEQR. 
2. Applicant to discuss project. 
3. More than 0.25 acres of trees have been removed from the parcel without a building permit, 

and for non-agricultural purposes.  Approximately 5000 sf of black dirt have been filled or 
converted.  A violation has been issued by the Building Inspector for activities inconsistent 
with Chapter 150 of the Town Code. 

a. The applicant has proposed a landscaping plan.  Note that plantings are to be done in 
the Spring of 2009.  Provide a Landscape Planting Bond and inspection fees.. 

b. Restore filled black dirt to the Town Engineer’s specifications.  Include the following 
Black Dirt Restoration Notes on the plan: 

1) The Town Engineer shall be notified one week prior to the removal of the 
working surface (stone and geotextile fabric) in the vicinity of the filled black 
dirt.  The Town Engineer or his representative shall witness the removal of the 
working surface. 

2) If the Town Engineer determines that the filled black dirt can be restored, the 
applicant will provide equipment and manpower to implement the restoration 
plan.  Such plan may include, but not be limited to, removal of construction 
debris or stone and tilling or using some other method of cultivation to restore 
the quality of the black dirt. 
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3) Unless the applicant plans to use the restored black dirt immediately for 

agriculture, the area shall be sown with a suitable cover crop as recommended 
by the Orange County Soil and Water Conservation District. 

4) Restoration of the black dirt shall be completed within two weeks of the 
removal of the working surface. 

4. A non-residential structure within an Agricultural District has been converted to non-
agricultural use without the prior approval of the Planning Board, in violation of Chapter 164 
of the Town Code. 

a. Applicant has applied for a Special Use Permit for adaptive reuse of the agricultural 
structure on SBL 3-1-35.2 and the yard on SBL 3-1-35.2 & 35.3.  Notes outlining the 
potential non-agricultural uses for the parcel are listed on the plan.  Insert the 
following: “The use of the structures and yard area for maintenance, repair, and 
storage of machinery, equipment and fuel for this application has been approved by 
the Planning Board.” 

b. The operator of the construction yard is storing and dispensing diesel fuel on the site.  
“Fuel & Hazardous Material Storage Notes” have been provided on the plan. The site 
is located within the Town of Warwick’s Aquifer Protection Overlay District.  In 
compliance with Millennium’s Spill Prevention, Containment, and Control Plan (page 
3), install a suitably sized impervious liner at the refueling location. 

c. Lot 35.1 contains a mobile home previously approved (10/19/05) by the Planning 
Board as a residence for the applicant’s farm manager.  Applicant has stated that an 
eviction notice has been served and, once vacated, the trailer will be removed. 

d. Lot 35.3 contains existing rental accommodations for housing agricultural workers in 
three buildings without benefit of a special use permit from the Planning Board.  A 
Violation having been issued, the applicant shall provide documentation to the 
satisfaction of the Building Inspector.  Place a note on the plan that the owner of the 
agricultural housing shall provide employment documentation for the tenants 
annually to the Town Building Inspector. 

5. Site lighting is provided in a manner inconsistent with Chapter 164 of the Town Code. 
a. Fixtures used on the site are a drop-bulb type fixture and floodlights.  Shielding is 

required per §164-43.4E(3).  Provide a detail showing how the fixtures will be 
shielded.  §16443.4G allows average illuminance of 1 footcandle for storage yards.  
Lights were turned off, yet the yard is still occupied during times when lighting is 
required for safety.  Provide conforming lighting and supporting documentation to the 
Town Engineer. 

6. The operator of the yard is utilizing construction trailers as offices and box trailers for 
storage.  Provide a letter from the tenant stating when they propose to demobilize from the 
site and, if demobilization will be done in stages, detailing when and how many trailers will 
be removed from the site.  Provide a $1000 bond per trailer for removal of the trailers. 

7. Brozdowski Lane, a private road, and Mission Land Road, a town road, are experiencing 
greater than usual traffic because of the activity in the yard.  Access by residents has been 
blocked at times and there are signs of excessive wear on both roads.  Provide notes on the 
plans stating that: 

a. Work hours at the yard are 7am to 7pm, Monday through Saturday.  In addition, there 
will be no heavy equipment moved in, out or within the yard on Sundays and 
holidays. 

b. Movement of work vehicles on Brozdowski Lane shall be accompanied by flaggers.  
The free movement of residential traffic will be expedited during the morning and 
evening hours. 

c. Irregularities and potholes in Brozdowski Lane will be patched immediately.  The full 
width of the road along the parcel’s frontage will be repaved immediately after all the 
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current activity in the yard is demobilized.  Brozdowski Lane being a private road, 
repaving shall consist of a truing and leveling course of NYSDOT Type 1 hot mix 
base course and a 2-in. course of NYSDOT Type 6F hot mix asphalt for the full 16-ft. 
width of the road. 

d. Before the current activity in the yard is demobilized, the DPW Commissioner will 
assess the condition of Mission Land Road along the parcel’s frontage and the road 
will be repaired to his specification.  Materials shall conform to the requirements of 
§A168-21. 

8. Provide a Performance Bond and inspection fees for repaving Brozdowski Lane.  Provide a 
Performance Bond for Black Dirt Restoration and inspection fees.  Provide a 3-year 
Landscape Maintenance Bond for mitigation plantings and inspection fees.  

9. Pay outstanding review fees. 
 
 
The following comment submitted by the Conservation Board: 
 
Thomas Sobiech #2 – None submitted. 
 
The following comment submitted by the ARB: 
 
Thomas Sobiech #2 – None submitted. 
 

Comment #1:  Board to discuss SEQR. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  The following SEQR comment has been prepared by Mr. Ted Fink, dated 
8/20/08 “SEQR issues associated with this application include the potential for impacts on 
agriculture due to the loss of black dirt soils and use of an agricultural structure for non-
agricultural purposes, impacts on aesthetics due to the loss of screening to adjacent 
residential uses from the current parking/staging areas and site lighting in excess of Town 
standards, impacts on traffic as a result of large construction equipment on local roads and 
lanes, and the eventual adaptive reuse of the other on-site structures for non-agricultural 
purposes.  I have prepared a draft Negative Declaration for the Board’s consideration 
assuming that appropriate mitigation is enforced. “ 
 
Comment #2:  Applicant to discuss project. 
 
Roger Lupino:  The applicant has leased the property to Millennium.  It has a staging site.  It 
is bounded by Mission Land Road, Brozdowski Lane and C.R. 1.  The buildings are used for 
materials and pipe fabrication.  There is also a storage of tanks and petroleum.  There are 
trailers that house parts and vehicle needs.  Most of the trailers are office in nature.  
Predominately, the lot is used for parking.  Trees have been cut down to accommodate all of 
this.  It has been covered with stone and item #4.   
 
Comment #3:  More than 0.25 acres of trees have been removed from the parcel without a 
building permit, and for non-agricultural purposes.  Approximately 5000 sf of black dirt have 
been filled or converted.  A violation has been issued by the Building Inspector for activities 
inconsistent with Chapter 150 of the Town Code. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  That is why you are here. 
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a. The applicant has proposed a landscaping plan.  Note that plantings are to be done 
in the Spring of 2009.  Provide a Landscape Planting Bond and inspection fees. 
 
Roger Lupino:  Ok.  In reference to the black dirt, Zen has reached me… 
 
Zen Wojcik:  That is in the next comment. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We are talking about the landscape bond. 
 
Roger Lupino:  The landscape bond will be furnished when you need it. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  We need it before the maps get signed.  That is immediately. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  The plantings will be done in the spring of 09 for their best chance 
to start without having them die. 
 
Roger Lupino:  Ok. 
 

b. Restore filled black dirt to the Town Engineer’s specifications.  Include the 
following Black Dirt Restoration Notes on the plan: 

1) The Town Engineer shall be notified one week prior to the removal of the 
working surface (stone and geotextile fabric) in the vicinity of the filled 
black dirt.  The Town Engineer or his representative shall witness the 
removal of the working surface. 

2) If the Town Engineer determines that the filled black dirt can be restored, 
the applicant will provide equipment and manpower to implement the 
restoration plan.  Such plan may include, but not be limited to, removal of 
construction debris or stone and tilling or using some other method of 
cultivation to restore the quality of the black dirt. 

3) Unless the applicant plans to use the restored black dirt immediately for 
agriculture, the area shall be sown with a suitable cover crop as 
recommended by the Orange County Soil and Water Conservation 
District. 

4) Restoration of the black dirt shall be completed within two weeks of the 
removal of the working surface. 
 

Roger Lupino:  Those notes have been installed on the plan. 
 

Comment #4:  A non-residential structure within an Agricultural District has been converted 
to non-agricultural use without the prior approval of the Planning Board, in violation of 
Chapter 164 of the Town Code. 

a. Applicant has applied for a Special Use Permit for adaptive reuse of the 
agricultural structure on SBL 3-1-35.2 and the yard on SBL 3-1-35.2 & 35.3.  
Notes outlining the potential non-agricultural uses for the parcel are listed on the 
plan.  Insert the following: “The use of the structures and yard area for 
maintenance, repair, and storage of machinery, equipment and fuel for this 
application has been approved by the Planning Board.” 
 
Roger Lupino:  The note is on the plan. 
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b. The operator of the construction yard is storing and dispensing diesel fuel on the 
site.  “Fuel & Hazardous Material Storage Notes” have been provided on the plan. 
The site is located within the Town of Warwick’s Aquifer Protection Overlay 
District.  In compliance with Millennium’s Spill Prevention, Containment, and 
Control Plan (page 3), install a suitably sized impervious liner at the refueling 
location. 
 
Roger Lupino:  Ok.  A 10x20 membrane was purchased and installed.   
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Keep that note there.  It has to be on the plans. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Ok. 
 
Roger Lupino: I have a sample of this membrane to give to you. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We will keep that for the record. 
 

c. Lot 35.1 contains a mobile home previously approved (10/19/05) by the Planning 
Board as a residence for the applicant’s farm manager.  Applicant has stated that 
an eviction notice has been served and, once vacated, the trailer will be removed. 
 
Roger Lupino:  I have the proof that you were looking for.   
 
Zen Wojcik:  Could you state for the record what it is that you just gave to us? 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  It is an Affidavit of Service.  It was served on 7/26/08.   
 
Mr. McConnell: Is it an eviction notice that has been served? 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Yes.  It is an Affidavit of Service of the eviction papers. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  Ok. 
 

d. Lot 35.3 contains existing rental accommodations for housing agricultural 
workers in three buildings without benefit of a special use permit from the 
Planning Board.  A Violation having been issued, the applicant shall provide 
documentation to the satisfaction of the Building Inspector.  Place a note on the 
plan that the owner of the agricultural housing shall provide employment 
documentation for the tenants annually to the Town Building Inspector. 
 
Roger Lupino:  I have the Notice of Violation.  Tom Sobiech has supplied me 
with payroll stubs.  I could give them to you or to Mr. John Batz tomorrow.   
 
Mr. Astorino:  We will make sure they get handed to the Building Department.  
Connie, please take care of that. 
 
Connie Sardo:  Ok. 
 

Comment #5:  Site lighting is provided in a manner inconsistent with Chapter 164 of the 
Town Code. 
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a. Fixtures used on the site are a drop-bulb type fixture and floodlights.  Shielding is 

required per §164-43.4E(3).  Provide a detail showing how the fixtures will be 
shielded.  §16443.4G allows average illuminance of 1 footcandle for storage 
yards.  Lights were turned off, yet the yard is still occupied during times when 
lighting is required for safety.  Provide conforming lighting and supporting 
documentation to the Town Engineer. 
 
Roger Lupino:  Ok.  This morning Jerry Humphrey went to Lam Electric.  He 
purchased fixtures.  He got the necessary electrical data that Zen needed.  We 
faxed it to him.  They are on the letter subject to his approval. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Zen, do you have this in your possession? 
 
Zen Wojcik:  I have the photometric.  I spoke to Mr. Humphrey.  I even looked on 
line at it to get some clarity because it was a black and white copy that I had.  I 
wanted to see it in color.  There was one comment that I had for him.  The lights 
have to be set so they would be pointing down.  He is aware of that.  There is a 
letter that will we will be getting that will state that they will be installed pointing 
down. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Will this be in compliance with the code? 
 
Zen Wojcik:  Yes.  
 
Mr. McConnell:  Does he know what height they have to be? 
 
Mr. Astorino:  It is 16 feet. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  We have said a lot about this before.  It is only of this late date 
that we are finally getting this. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  At least we are getting it. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  Yes.   
 

Comment #6:  The operator of the yard is utilizing construction trailers as offices and box 
trailers for storage.  Provide a letter from the tenant stating when they propose to demobilize 
from the site and, if demobilization will be done in stages, detailing when and how many 
trailers will be removed from the site.  Provide a $1000 bond per trailer for removal of the 
trailers. 
 
Roger Lupino:  Ok.  I have a letter from Millennium Pipeline that encompasses several of 
these items.  It mainly goes into the trailer demobilization.  I believe it is accordance of what 
you wanted.  You could read Millennium’s letter over. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Do you have a copy of that letter for us? 
 
Roger Lupino:  Yes. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Ben, please read that letter to the Board. 
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Mr. Astorino:  We received a letter from Millennium Pipeline Co., LLC., dated 8/20/08 
addressed to the Planning Board.  The letter is stated as follow: 
 
Dear Mr. Astorino: 
 
This letter is written to address comments/conditions for the site plan and special use permit 
referenced above for the Thomas Sobiech #2 application. 
 
Millennium has reviewed the comments/conditions and has the following comments: 
 
· 6. Provide a letter from the tenant stating when they propose to demobilize.  The letter will 
detail demobilizing in stages, when and how many trailers will be removed from the site.  A 
$1000.00 bond per trailer will be provided for removal of the trailers. 
· 8.  Provide a performance bond for repaving Brozdowski Lane. 
 
As referenced in condition 6, Millennium plans a two phase demobilization of trailers.  Phase 
I involves the removal of mobile office trailers numbered 3,5, and 12 not later than 
December 31, 2008.  Phase II will be the final demobilization of the yard.  All remaining 
mobile office trailers and storage trailers will be removed not later than September 1, 2009. 
 
Millennium will deliver to the Town of Warwick a bond in the amount of $50,000.00 as a 
surety for removal of mobile office trailers and per condition #8, which requires Brozdowski 
Lane to be repaved. 
 
·  7.a.  Requires a note on the plan indicating work hours are 7 am – 7 pm, Monday through 
Saturday without exception. 
 
This condition conflicts with common industry wide pipeline construction practices assumed 
in the construction schedule.  The construction schedule must be met to provide the winter 
heating needs of gas consumers in Warwick and others now served by Columbia Gas 
Transmission, which is being physically removed. 
 
Pipeline construction is seasonal work, typically done during day light, warm weather days.  
Workers begin arriving at the Pine Island yard as early as 5:00 a.m. and remain into the 
evening hours.  Exact times that the yard is in use, varies depending on the day’s work plan.  
Trucks making deliveries from other parts of the country may arrive at any time of the day or 
night.  The Pine Island yard supports field workers by ensuring a safe efficient workplace 
and adherence to environmental practices which will preserve the natural beauty of the area. 
 
We respectfully request that condition 7A be deleted. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Larry England 
Chief Inspector 
Millennium Pipeline Company, LLC. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  Mr. Chairman, did it reference something there about trailer #12? 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Yes. 
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Mr. McConnell:  I am looking at the plan.  I only see 11 trailers. 
 
Roger Lupino:  I will explain that.  When the plans were drawn, I had all of the trailers 
numbered.  The plans were submitted.  A new trailer popped up on the site, which I 
subsequently show it on the following plans.  That new trailer was not numbered on the plan 
that you are looking at.  We are now calling it trailer #12. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  That would have to be renumbered on the plan. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  You are telling me that the plans are not accurate.  It doesn’t reflect that 
trailer. 
 
Roger Lupino:  There is a trailer there with no number. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  Could you show me where that is on here? 
 
Mr. Lupino shows Mr. McConnell where trailer #12 is located on the plan that is not 
numbered. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  Ok. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  That trailer will have to be numbered on the final plan. 
 
Mr. Lupino:  Yes. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  On comment #6, add to that comment, renumber trailers to the Town 
Engineer’s specifications.  Has Tectonic reviewed the bond estimate for paving? 
 
Zen Wojcik:  We haven’t arrived at that comment yet? 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  That comment is in the letter itself. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  Ok. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  They want to post $1,000 per trailer, which we require.  Landscaping isn’t 
mentioned here.  That would be another bond.  There will also be inspection fees.  Then we 
have to have the bonding of the pavement of Brozdowski Lane. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  We haven’t done an estimate yet. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Ok.  That will have to be met. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  This is their proposal.  It is not necessarily the numbers. 
 
Roger Lupino:  I think you will be receiving a bond for $50,000.00 to cover trailers. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We don’t know what the actual cost of Brozdowski Lane is to bond.  Is that 
correct? 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  That will have to be verified.   
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Mr. Astorino:  We will verify that with our Engineers.  But, that is a start. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  $50,000.00 is a start. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Yes. 

 
Comment #7:  Brozdowski Lane, a private road, and Mission Land Road, a town road, are 
experiencing greater than usual traffic because of the activity in the yard.  Access by 
residents has been blocked at times and there are signs of excessive wear on both roads.  
Provide notes on the plans stating that: 

a) Work hours at the yard are 7am to 7pm, Monday through Saturday.  In 
addition, there will be no heavy equipment moved in, out or within the yard 
on Sundays and holidays. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  I want to insert in that comment, general work hours. 
 

b) Movement of work vehicles on Brozdowski Lane shall be accompanied by 
flaggers.  The free movement of residential traffic will be expedited during the 
morning and evening hours. 

c) Irregularities and potholes in Brozdowski Lane will be patched immediately.  
The full width of the road along the parcel’s frontage will be repaved 
immediately after all the current activity in the yard is demobilized.  
Brozdowski Lane being a private road, repaving shall consist of a truing and 
leveling course of NYSDOT Type 1 hot mix base course and a 2-in. course of 
NYSDOT Type 6F hot mix asphalt for the full 16-ft. width of the road. 
 
Roger Lupino:  Those notes are on the plan.  That bond will cover that work. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  That is something that is yet to be determined. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  Mr. Chairman, I just gave you copies of photos that I took out 
there regarding the road surface.  The road surface is ragged.   
 
Mr. Astorino:  The potholes will have to be fixed ASAP. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  Yes.   
 
Mr. Astorino:  Is that the same with these culverts?  Is that included in the 
resurfacing of the road? 
 
Zen Wojcik:  Yes.  There are a couple of culverts that have been run over by 
machinery.  They will need to be repaired. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Ok. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  The culverts will have to be replaced. 
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d) Before the current activity in the yard is demobilized, the DPW Commissioner 
will assess the condition of Mission Land Road along the parcel’s frontage 
and the road will be repaired to his specification.  Materials shall conform to 
the requirements of §A168-21. 
 
Roger Lupino:  The note is on the plan. 
 

Comment #8:  Provide a Performance Bond and inspection fees for repaving Brozdowski 
Lane.  Provide a Performance Bond for Black Dirt Restoration and inspection fees.  Provide 
a 3-year Landscape Maintenance Bond for mitigation plantings and inspection fees.  
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  I want to add to that.  There shall be no pro rata bond reduction.  The bonds 
are posted when everything is completed.  That is when it gets returned. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Ok. 
 
Comment #9:  Pay outstanding review fees. 
 
Roger Lupino:  Yes. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  In Millennium’s letter, dated 8/20/08 item #7.a., it says that it requires a note 
on the plan indicating work hours are 7 am – 7 pm, Monday through Saturday without 
exception.  It also states that, this condition conflicts with common industry wide pipeline 
construction practices assumed in the construction schedule.  The construction schedule must 
be met to provide the winter heating needs of gas consumers in Warwick and others now 
served by Columbia Gas Transmission which is being physically removed.  The Pipeline 
construction is seasonal work, typically done during day light, warm weather days.  Workers 
begin arriving at the Pine Island yard as early as 5:00 a.m. and remain into the evening 
hours.  Exact times that the yard is in use, varies depending on the day’s work plan.  Trucks 
making deliveries from other parts of the country may arrive at any time of the day or night.  
The Pine Island yard supports field workers by ensuring a safe efficient workplace and 
adherence to environmental practices which will preserve the natural beauty of the area.” 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  What hours do they propose? 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Are you talking about from 5 am with pickup’s going into a trailer? 
 
Roger Lupino:  Not full blast with activity. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Will the general hours of operation be from 7 am through 7 pm.? 
 
Roger Lupino:  That is what the Town Code says. 
 
Larry England:  I am the Chief Inspector for the Millennium Pipeline Company.   
 
Mr. Astorino:  What is your take on these hours of operation?  What will be done outside the 
7 am through 7 pm.?   
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Larry England:  We usually gather in the yard around 5 am or 5:30 am.  The meetings are 
from 6:30 am to 7 am.  Everybody starts disbursing the yard at 7 am.  Except, we are trying 
to get ready to get this all tied in.  We have crews going out at 6 am and working until 8 pm. 
right now.  We are trying to get ready to start the hydro test.  When we start the hydro test, it 
is done 24/7.  We have to work that.  When we start filling the lines, we cannot shut down.  
When we start filling, we have to keep on filling it until we get it filled so that there are no 
errors made.  We cannot stop that. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  How does that interact with working in the yard? 
 
Larry England:  We have to have support people in the yard. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  What will they be doing? 
 
Larry England:  We keep a staff in there just in case we have any problems.  We need to 
contact them if we need any materials.  We will have a small crew in the yard for support. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Would they be moving heavy equipment at that time, at those off hours? 
 
Larry England:  No.  We won’t be moving any equipment at night.  It would be done during 
the daytime.   
 
Mr. McConnell:  What we are trying to determine here is that the Town has decided that 
from 7 am to 7 pm is a reasonable time for this type of activity.  You are suggesting that you 
need to do some things outside of those hours.  To the extent that the things that you want to 
do outside of these hours create a nuisance that is unacceptable, we are not going to agree to 
it.  Convince us what you want to do outside of those hours will have a minimum impact on 
the people in the area and the Town itself. 
 
Larry England:  We are working 14 to 15 hours a day trying to get the pipeline tied in.  We 
have 6 crews trying to tie the pipeline in.  We are working in the Greenwood Lake area, 
Nelson Road area, and Bellvale Lake Road area.  We have several areas that we are working 
in.  We are working in the Renaissance area.  We have wetlands in that area that we have to 
get set in.  We have a timeframe that we have to do that.  It has to be completed within 24 to 
48 hours.  Sometimes, we have to work around the clock when we start on them because of 
the timeframe.  We can’t do it on a 12-hour shift. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Let us get back to the site that we are talking about.  That is the issue here.  
The bottom line is when you have crews going in, I don’t believe that is a huge nuisance.  
But, if you have excavators and dozers running at 2 am that would be one of our concerns.  
We understand that the pipeline has to be tied in out in the fields.  But, if it is just crews 
coming in, is that what would be happening on these off hours? 
 
Larry England:  On the test, we will split the shift at midnight.   
 
Mr. Astorino:  Is that the general gist that would be going on? 
 
Larry England:  We will have big air compressors out at M&R station north of the town. 
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Mr. Astorino:  I understand that.  I understand that out in the field you will have it lit up like 
a candle. 
 
Larry England:  Mostly, it will be having them come in and out. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  John, could you do a note to that effect? 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  In comment #7 a., we are proposing for the general work hours at the yard 
are 6 am to 8 pm Monday through Saturday.  In addition, there will be no heavy equipment 
moved in, out or within the yard from 7 pm to 7 am.  No heavy equipment moved on 
Sundays and holidays. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  Mr. Chairman, about 2 years ago, this Board recently reviewed an application 
that was right down Kings Highway on the lumberyard.  We had neighbors complaining 
about early morning activities.  Voices carry.  It is very quiet here in Warwick.  That is what 
we like.  At the lumberyard, they have signs up all over the place stating not to congregate 
outside in the early morning hours.  Maybe, we would want to have a sign like that at the 
Millennium yard.  If they want to have a conversation, they should do it inside the building 
or inside your car, not outside.   
 
Larry England:  That is hard to do with 350 people in a building. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  I think Millennium will take some extra measures to make sure they are 
quiet and reasonable.  If it becomes a nuisance, the Building Inspector will shut the site 
down.  I just want to make that very clear. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  I think we understand where you are going as far as crews going in and out of 
there.  We want to make this clear.  But if this turns into excavators being moved in and out 
at 3:00 in the morning every day, then that will be an issue.  If it is just a crew coming in and 
gets out of the truck and going to the fields, that would be fine.  I think that is where we are 
headed.  Is that correct? 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  I think we have an understanding. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  I think we have an understanding.  I am not so sure that Millennium has an 
understanding.  They haven’t really addressed it yet.  They haven’t really said that.  All we 
heard about was what they need to do out in the field.  I am not as comfortable with their 
understanding as perhaps my colleague’s here are. 
 
Larry England:  Let me make a statement to enlighten everyone here.  We meet at 5:30 am 
every morning. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  I thought you said between 5:30 am and 6:00 am. 
 
Larry England:  I am in the office every morning between 4:45 am and 5:00 am. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  We are talking about the general workers coming to the yard. 
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Larry England:  They come in around 5:30 am. and 6:00 am.  We have crews going to work 
at 6 am.  That is when they are disbursing from the yard.  They have to be there at 5:30 am to 
get their materials and stuff that they need to work with that day. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach: So, it will be from 5:30 am. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Where do these meetings take place? 
 
Larry England:  I have a meeting with all the inspectors at 6:30 am in our office. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  You don’t have a general meeting with every worker on that site.  You just 
have a meeting with supervisors. 
 
Larry England; No.  Every Monday mornings, I have a meeting with everybody there.  I have 
a safety meeting.  I discuss the safety, their personality, language, and cleaning up the 
R.O.W. with every individual on this project.  I go over that every Monday with everybody.  
I tell them to be polite with the general public the property owners.  I tell them to treat them 
with curtsey and respect because we are guests on the property.  I believe in that.   
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Are the general work hours of operation from 5:30 am to 8:00 pm? 
 
Larry England:  Pretty much so. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Ok.  Does the Board have any further discussion on that? 
 
Larry England:  I have another problem.  We are working 7 days a week. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  You said that the heavy equipment would not be moved on Sundays and 
Holidays. 
 
Larry England:  The heavy equipment won’t be moved on Sundays and Holidays.  We would 
have to get a permit to move it. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  That takes care of that issue. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  I am saying that the general hours of operation would be from 5:30 am to 
8:00 pm.   
 
Zen Wojcik:  John, is that 7 days a week? 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  No.  It would be Monday through Saturday as the note is written. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Does the Board have any further comment on this note? 
 
Larry England:  For the next 3 weeks, we need to get some kind of exception for Sunday 
because we are working 7 days a week.  We have to in order to meet the schedule. 
 
Roger Lupino:  That is on the line, not on the yard. 
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Larry England:  No.  We need that for the yard.  We go to the yard on Sunday mornings just 
like we do on Monday mornings.   Until we get the hydro test done and the line tied in, we 
will be working 7 days a week. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Will that be done within the next few Sundays? 
 
Larry England:  Hopefully, we will be ready to commission this line by September 9, 2008. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Does that mean until September 9th? 
 
Larry England:  Yes.  That would be from Warwick to Tuxedo. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  That means you would have 2 weeks to do that. 
 
Mr. Singer:  Does that mean you will be working on Labor Day? 
 
Larry England:  Yes. 
 
Mr. Singer:  Then, you are excluding the holiday.  John, he wants to work on the holiday. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  We will incorporate that. 
 
Larry England:  We have to work every day in order to meet the schedule. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  These meetings that you have here on the site, do they have to be conducted at 
that site?   
 
Zen Wojcik:  Mr. Chairman, what Mr. England is talking about is safety meetings.  They are 
very often tied into the insurance that the company has for their work.  It has to be done that 
way to make sure that everyone understands what the rules are. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  The safety meetings are every Monday.  We understand that.  I am talking 
about on Sundays. 
 
Larry England:  We don’t have safety meetings on Sundays. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Correct me if I am wrong, you will have your crews come in, they know what 
they are doing that day.  They would come in and get their equipment and leave.   
 
Larry England:  Right. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  They are not loitering.  They should come in, go out to the job, and get it 
done.  Is that correct? 
 
Larry England:  They come back in at night.   
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Just be conscious of the sensitivity in the area. 
 
Larry England:  Ok.  We know that. 
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Mr. Astorino:  This is a public hearing.  If there is anyone in the audience wishing to address 
the Thomas Sobiech #2 application, please rise and state your name for the record. 
 
Ross and Madeline Folino come up in front of the Planning Board to speak about their 
concerns. 
 
Ross Folino:  We live on Brozdowski Lane.  We came to the last meeting.  I had numerous 
comments at that time.  Now, I have other questions.  I appreciate the Board for addressing 
and answering many of those comments.  Regarding the timing of the permit, we started 
talking about the trailers going out in December.  Is there some overlap into next year? 
 
Mr. Astorino:  I believe the last one is until September 1, 2009.  In Millennium’s letter it 
says, Phase I would be a two phase de-mobilization of trailers.  Phase I involves the removal 
of mobile office trailers numbered 3, 5, and 12 not later than December 31, 2008.  Phase II 
will be the final de-mobilization September 1, 2009. 
 
Ross Folino:  Ok.  Will there be a bond to cover that? 
 
Mr. Astorino:  They will all be bonded. 
 
Ross Folino:  Ok. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  As we had said, we will have to work out the exact bond.  They gave us a 
number, but that is not it set in stone as of this date. 
 
Ross Folino:  Is that also related to the paving? 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Yes.  We will figure out the paving, landscaping, and mitigation regarding the 
bonds. 

 
Ross Folino:  I am not clear on the planting of trees.  Is there a format for how many and 
where? 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Yes.  We have a landscaping plan. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  There is a landscaping plan that the Town Planner is reviewing.  He is not 
here with us tonight.  It is subject to his approval. 
 
Ross Folino:  Ok. 
 
Roger Lupino:  The landscaping will be primarily on the corner of Brozdowski Lane. 
 
Ross Folino:  Does it come down the Lane?  Does it cover any of the area where there were 
many large trees?  Now, they are gone.  Or, will this just be a corner thing? 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Regarding the landscaping plan, we will mention that you want it a little 
further down Brozdowski Lane where those trees were.  We will make a note of that for Ted.  
We could probably incorporate that. 
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Mr. McConnell:  I think we discussed a two phase.  I think we were going to do some 
plantings in the short term.  The rest of it doesn’t make sense to plant them in the middle of 
the winter. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  No.  We don’t want them to die.  There is a 3-year landscape bond that is 
posted. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  I am sorry but Mr. McConnell was incorrect.  It was discussed that the 
plantings would occur in the spring of 09.  It would be pointless to do it now.  We were 
talking about plantings; it is an adaptive reuse of this yard.  It is not to preclude further 
adaptive reuse of the yard in accordance with the Code for the applicant.  That is why the 
plantings are situated where they are. 
 
Ross Folino:  You are stressing my concern.  I am afraid that it is setting a precedence with 
all this big chunks of stone and everything else.  That was my concern on that.  Regarding the 
potholes, will that be done ASAP? 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Yes.  Does Millennium understand that? 
 
Roger Lupino:  Yes. 
 
Ross Folino:  Thank you. 
 
Madeline Folino:  As far as the removal of the trailer that Mr. Sobiech’s brother lives in, the 
one that the eviction notice has been served, is there any deadline or a time frame? 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  As soon as the court approves the removal, the eviction. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We don’t supersede the court. 
 
Madeline Folino:  I am still nervous about the noise issue with them starting so early in the 
morning and going so late.  The most irritating thing is the backup alarms on the machines.  
That is constant throughout the day.  A new feature just started last week.  They have walkie-
talkies broadcasting over the whole area. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  Roger, are there external speakers set up? 
 
Roger Lupino:  Not that I know of. 
 
Connie Sardo:  They are Nextel phones. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  The backup alarm is a safety issue. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  That is something you would have to live with.  OSHA requires that. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  The backup alarms are on the heavy equipment.  That is limited from 7 am 
to 7 pm. 
 
Madeline Folino:  That is what I am saying.  It is constant. 
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Mr. Bollenbach:  That is what the Code permits.  OSHA requires that.  You will have to deal 
with it.  We only could go so far. 
 
Madeline Folino:  What about the storage of propane tanks? That is another thing we are 
concerned about.  There are no warnings up about that. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  They have sheds out there.  One shed says that they have empty tanks.  The 
other shed says they have full tanks.  You just have to have a fence around when you are 
filling up the propane tanks.  This is a federally mandated gas project.  The State law does 
not cover them. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Is it fenced in? 
 
Zen Wojcik:  Yes.  It is fenced in where they are filling things. 
 
Ross Folino:  The street sign for Brozdowski Lane has been moved. 
 
Madeline Folino:  We would like our street sign moved back to its original location so that it 
is visible. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We will make a note of that.  I am sure that Millennium will move the sign 
back. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  That will be covered under the road bond. 
 
Madeline Folino:  If there are problems, who do we call? 
 
Mr. Astorino:  You could call the Building Department.  They will have a copy of the 
approved plans.  The notes will be on the plan.  Millennium will follow the notes.  If not, 
they will get shut down or go back to court. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Is there anyone else wishing to address the Thomas Sobiech #2 application? 
 
Ted Sobiech, Jr.:  I am here on behalf of myself.  I just found out tonight about some type of 
an eviction. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  That is what we have in our possession. 
 
Ted Sobiech, Jr:  I was never served for any type of an eviction. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  That is between them and the court.   
 
Mr. Astorino:  We have the documentation here. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  It is an Affidavit of Service.  It is between you and the court. 
 
Ted Sobiech, Jr.:  Has John Batz been in touch with you about another trailer that is located 
on Mr. Sobiech’s property? 
 
Mr. Astorino:  John, is that a violation? 
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Zen Wojcik:  That trailer is not on this property. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  If you have concerns, take those concerns to Mr. Batz. 

 
Ted Sobiech, Jr.:  What about the landfill that we have here?   
 
Mr. Astorino:  We just discussed that regarding the black dirt on this parcel. 
 
Ted Sobiech, Jr.:  No.  I am talking about all the garbage that is being brought in from the 
Black Bear Campground and around the area. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Zen, have you been out there? 
 
Zen Wojcik:  I haven’t seen anything.  Where is this? 
 
Ted Sobiech, Jr.:  It has been going on daily, smashing all the garbage.  Are they in the 
washing machine/laundry business?  They are dumping washing machines. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Is this on the Millennium site? 
 
Ted Sobiech, Jr.:  Yes.  I have some pictures to show you. We have Millennium Hertz trucks 
filling up with water.  They are running longer than 5 minutes with diesel fumes.  I am sure 
you know the Code by the NYSDEC. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  What does this picture reference?   
 
Ted Sobiech, Jr.:  That’s the well that they had burned out, by my premises. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Are you talking about this trailer in the photograph? 
 
Ted Sobiech, Jr.:  Yes.  Now, they don’t need any water.  Nobody came to fix the well.  They 
have been called.  It is a laughing matter.  It is now harassment.   
 
Mr. Astorino:  Is this the trailer that needs to be removed? 
 
Ted Sobiech, Jr.:  Right.  We went to the Town for this trailer.  Zen, what happened?  We 
had it approved.  Why is it being disapproved? 
 
Zen Wojcik:  The conditions for having the trailer which were on the approval was that every 
year we would get a notification that the occupant in the trailer was employed by the farm.   
 
 
Ted Sobiech, Jr.:  Right. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  That documentation was never met.  We asked Thomas Sobiech to provide 
documentation.  He told us that would be difficult to do because the applicant of the trailer 
was no longer working the farm.  That is where this whole thing came about. 
 
Ted Sobiech, Jr.:  This all started when I was helping Mr. Sobiech financially. 
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Mr. Astorino:  Let us address the issue at hand.  We are not getting into this.  We are talking 
about the Millennium site. 
 
Ted Sobiech, Jr.:  He is in bankruptcy. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Again, We are just talking about the Millennium site.  Do you have any issues 
regarding the application that is in front of the Planning Board? 
 
Mr. Ted Sobiech, Jr., continued, speaking about other issues and violations that are not 
related to this application.  Most of the issues are court related or Building Department 
issues. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Is there anyone else wishing to address the Thomas Sobiech #2 application? 
 
Tina Kaplan:  I live across the street from the pipeline.  The pipeline has been maintained.  I 
went over there on Monday and complained.  They have straightened out a couple of things 
that I asked them to do.  My biggest issue is that I wish the Millennium workers and their 
bosses would have respect for the people who are on that road and live there. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  What do you mean? As far as what? 
 
Tina Kaplan:  Garbage and noise. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  What do you mean by noise? 
 
Tina Kaplan:  They are yelling.  The speakerphones are going on constantly. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Those are Nextel phones. 
 
Tina Kaplan:  That is part of work.  I understand that 100%. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  What time does this happen? 
 
Tina Kaplan:  5:30 am and 6:00 am.  If they could just show a little respect for the people 
that do live there and pay taxes, would be great.  I am glad the road will get fixed.  I had my 
car aligned twice already. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  That will be done ASAP.  I expect that will be done first priority. 
 
Tina Kaplan:  Will they also fix the drainage ditch on Brozdowski Lane? 
 
Mr. Astorino: Yes.  They will also fix the culvert pipes that were damaged. 
 
 
Tina Kaplan:  I have also been fighting with the County who owns County Route 1.  The 
County said that they would put a culvert in so that the water comes down.  I think I talked to 
you about that. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  You did talk to me about that. 
 
Tina Kaplan:  They still haven’t done that yet.   
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Mr. Astorino:  They will get to it.  It is the County.  Give them a little time.  Give the County 
another call. 
 
Tina Kaplan:  I call them every Monday. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Try calling them on a Tuesday.  Let them know that this work regarding the 
trees will be done in the spring of 09.  Tell them that you want this done before that. 
 
Tina Kaplan: Ok.  Thank you. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Is there anyone else wishing to address the Thomas Sobiech #2 application?  
Let the record show no further public comment.  Do any Board members or Professionals 
have any comments? 
 
Mr. Kowal makes a motion for the Negative Declaration. 
 
Seconded by Mr. McConnell.  The following Resolution was carried 3-Ayes and 1-
Nay (Mr. Singer). 
 

617.12(b) 
State Environmental Quality Review (SEQR) 

Resolution Authorizing Filing of Negative Declaration 
 

 
Name of Action: Sobiech #2 
 
 Whereas, the Town of Warwick Planning Board is the SEQR Lead Agency for 
conducting the environmental review of a proposed Site Plan and special Use 
Applicaiton, Town of Warwick, Orange County, New York, and 
 
 Whereas, there are no other involved agencies pursuant to SEQR,       and 
 
 Whereas, the Planning Board has reviewed an Environmental Assessment 
Form (EAF) for the action dated  5/2/08, the probable environmental effects of the 
action, and has considered such impacts as disclosed in the EAF. 
 
 Now Therefore Be It Resolved, that the Planning Board adopts the findings 
and conclusions relating to probable environmental effects contained within the 
attached EAF and Negative Declaration and authorizes the Chair to execute the EAF 
and file the Negative Declaration in accordance with the applicable provisions of law, 
and 
 
 Be It Further Resolved, that the Planning Board authorizes the Chair to take 
such further steps as might be necessary to discharge the Lead Agency’s 
responsibilities on this action. 
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Mr. McConnell:  The actual Negative Declaration needs to be modified to reflect what it is 
we have changed regarding the work hours. 
 
Mr. Kowal makes a motion to amend the Negative Declaration to the Town Engineer and 
Town Attorney’s specifications. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  What we have just been through and hearing the Negative Declaration, it 
sounds a little bit odd because we have addressed many concerns.  The filing of the Negative 
Declaration that I have seconded is appropriate because of the mitigation that we are 
proposing.  I want it for the record that we have considered all of the impacts.  We have 
proposed mitigation to overcome those impacts numerous times. 
 
Seconded by Mr. McConnell.  Motion carried; 3-Ayes and 1-Nay (Mr. Singer). 
 
Mr. McConnell makes a motion to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Seconded by Mr. Kowal.  Motion carried; 4-Ayes. 
 

Mr. McConnell makes a motion on the Thomas Sobiech #2 application, granting Site Plan 
Approval and Special Use Permit for the use of property as a staging yard – storage of 
construction vehicles, situated on tax parcels S 3 B 1 L 35.1, 35.2, and 35.3; project located on 
the western side of County Route 1 between Mission Land Road and Brozdowski Lane, in the 
AI/LB zones, of the Town of Warwick, County of Orange, State of New York,  A Negative 
Declaration was adopted on August 20, 2008.  Site Plan and Special Use Permit Approval 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. More than 0.25 acres of trees have been removed from the parcel without a building 
permit, and for non-agricultural purposes.  Approximately 5000 sf of black dirt have been 
filled or converted.  A violation has been issued by the Building Inspector for activities 
inconsistent with Chapter 150 of the Town Code. 

a. The applicant has proposed a landscaping plan.  Note that plantings are to be done 
in the Spring of 2009.  Provide a Landscape Planting Bond and inspection fees.. 

b. Restore filled black dirt to the Town Engineer’s specifications.  Include the 
following Black Dirt Restoration Notes on the plan: 

1) The Town Engineer shall be notified one week prior to the removal of the 
working surface (stone and geotextile fabric) in the vicinity of the filled 
black dirt.  The Town Engineer or his representative shall witness the 
removal of the working surface. 

2) If the Town Engineer determines that the filled black dirt can be restored, 
the applicant will provide equipment and manpower to implement the 
restoration plan.  Such plan may include, but not be limited to, removal of 
construction debris or stone and tilling or using some other method of 
cultivation to restore the quality of the black dirt. 

3) Unless the applicant plans to use the restored black dirt immediately for 
agriculture, the area shall be sown with a suitable cover crop as 
recommended by the Orange County Soil and Water Conservation 
District. 

4) Restoration of the black dirt shall be completed within two weeks of the 
removal of the working surface. 
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2. A non-residential structure within an Agricultural District has been converted to non-

agricultural use without the prior approval of the Planning Board, in violation of Chapter 
164 of the Town Code. 

a. Applicant has applied for a Special Use Permit for adaptive reuse of the 
agricultural structure on SBL 3-1-35.2 and the yard on SBL 3-1-35.2 & 35.3.  
Notes outlining the potential non-agricultural uses for the parcel are listed on the 
plan.  Insert the following: “The use of the structures and yard area for 
maintenance, repair, and storage of machinery, equipment and fuel for this 
application has been approved by the Planning Board.” 

b. The operator of the construction yard is storing and dispensing diesel fuel on the 
site.  “Fuel & Hazardous Material Storage Notes” have been provided on the plan. 
The site is located within the Town of Warwick’s Aquifer Protection Overlay 
District.  In compliance with Millennium’s Spill Prevention, Containment, and 
Control Plan (page 3), install a suitably sized impervious liner at the refueling 
location. 

c. Lot 35.1 contains a mobile home previously approved (10/19/05) by the Planning 
Board as a residence for the applicant’s farm manager.  Applicant has stated that 
an eviction notice has been served and, once vacated, the trailer will be removed. 

d. Lot 35.3 contains existing rental accommodations for housing agricultural 
workers in three buildings without benefit of a special use permit from the 
Planning Board.  A Violation having been issued, the applicant shall provide 
documentation to the satisfaction of the Building Inspector.  Place a note on the 
plan that the owner of the agricultural housing shall provide employment 
documentation for the tenants annually to the Town Building Inspector. 

3. Site lighting is provided in a manner inconsistent with Chapter 164 of the Town Code. 
a. Fixtures used on the site are a drop-bulb type fixture and floodlights.  Shielding is 

required per §164-43.4E(3).  Provide a detail showing how the fixtures will be 
shielded.  §16443.4G allows average illuminance of 1 footcandle for storage 
yards.  Lights were turned off, yet the yard is still occupied during times when 
lighting is required for safety.  Provide conforming lighting and supporting 
documentation to the Town Engineer. 

4. The operator of the yard is utilizing construction trailers as offices and box trailers for 
storage.  Provide a letter from the tenant stating when they propose to demobilize from 
the site and, if demobilization will be done in stages, detailing when and how many 
trailers will be removed from the site.  Provide a $1000 bond per trailer for removal of 
the trailers.  Renumber trailers to Town Engineer’s specifications. 

5. Brozdowski Lane, a private road, and Mission Land Road, a town road, are experiencing 
greater than usual traffic because of the activity in the yard.  Access by residents has been 
blocked at times and there are signs of excessive wear on both roads.  Provide notes on 
the plans stating that: 

a. General work hours at the yard are 5:30 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. daily and after 9/9/08 
Monday through Saturday.  In addition, there will be no heavy equipment moved 
in, out or within the yard from 7:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. Monday through Saturday 
and no heavy equipment movement on Sundays and holidays. 

b. Movement of work vehicles on Brozdowski Lane shall be accompanied by 
flaggers.  The free movement of residential traffic will be expedited during the 
morning and evening hours. 

c. Irregularities and potholes in Brozdowski Lane will be patched immediately.  The 
full width of the road along the parcel’s frontage will be repaved immediately 
after all the current activity in the yard is demobilized.  Brozdowski Lane being a 
private road, repaving shall consist of a truing and leveling course of NYSDOT 
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Type 1 hot mix base course and a 2-in. course of NYSDOT Type 6F hot mix 
asphalt for the full 16-ft. width of the road. 

d. Before the current activity in the yard is demobilized, the DPW Commissioner 
will assess the condition of Mission Land Road along the parcel’s frontage and 
the road will be repaired to his specification.  Materials shall conform to the 
requirements of §A168-21. 

6. Provide a Performance Bond and Inspection Fees for repaving Brozdowski Lane.  
Provide a Performance Bond for Black Dirt Restoration and inspection fees.  Provide a 3-
year Landscape Maintenance Bond for mitigation plantings and inspection fees.  There 
shall be no pro rata bond reduction. 

7. Pay Outstanding Review Fees. 
 

Seconded by Mr. Kowal.  Motion carried; 3-Ayes and 1-Nay (Mr. Singer). 
 
Roger Lupino:  Thank you. 
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PUBLIC HEARING OF Gary Randall 
 

Application for site plan approval and special use permit for the construction and use 
of a guesthouse located within the Ridgeline Overlay District, situated on tax parcel S 
19 B 1 L 47.2; project located on the western side of Route 94 driveway is 500+ feet 
north of Minturn Road, in the MT zone, of the Town of Warwick, County of Orange, 
State of New York. 
 
Representing the applicant:  Dave Getz from Lehman & Getz Engineering.  Gary and 
Kathy Randall, applicants. 
 
Connie Sardo:  Mr. Chairman, we have received the certified mailings for the Gary 
Randall public hearing. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Thank you. 
 
The following review comments submitted by Tectonic: 
 

1. Board to discuss SEQR. 
2. Applicant to discuss project. 
3. The proposed guest house will be located in the Ridgeline Overlay District.  The 

proposed building height exceeds 25 feet.  A Sight Line Profile has been prepared 
showing that a 35 foot tall structure would not be visible from NYS Rts 94 & 17A, a 
scenic road.  Applicant requests a waiver for building height exceeding 25 feet but not to 
exceed 35 feet.  Revise the map note. 

4. Provide the declaration and the recording information on the plan for Ridgeline Overlay 
Notes, Agricultural Protection Notes, and Common Driveway Use and Maintenance 
Agreement. 

5. Pay outstanding review fees. 
 
WAIVERS & EXEMPTIONS 

CODE ACTIVITY 
§164-47.1F(2) Ridgeline Overlay District, Design requirements, Restrictions on height.  

Building height may be greater than 25 feet but not to exceed 35 feet. 
  
 

 
The following comment submitted by the Conservation Board: 
 
Gary Randall – None submitted. 
 
The following comment submitted by the ARB: 
 
Gary Randall – None submitted. 

 
 
 
Comment #1:  Board to discuss SEQR. 
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Mr. McConnell:  The following SEQR comment has been prepared by Mr. Ted Fink, dated 
8/20/08:  “The Planning Board has already declared itself Lead Agency for this Unlisted 
Action using a Short EAF.  At this time, issuance of a Negative Declaration is appropriate 
unless testimony at the Public Hearing reveals any other potential SEQR issue that was not 
addressed.  A draft Negative Declaration has been prepared.” 
   
Comment #2:  Applicant to discuss project. 
 
Dave Getz:  The applicant owns approximately 57 acres with frontage on Route 94.  There is 
an existing house that is served by an existing paved driveway.  They propose to construct a 
guesthouse within the property.  We show a theoretical lot line.  We have discussed at 
various meeting the implications of that.  Since our last appearance, we have made a few 
minor changes to the plans.  There is nothing significant. 
 
Gary Randall:  I just want to give a little overview on why my wife and I have taken on this 
project.  My wife and I have been in the business of restoring antique furniture for over 30 
years.  Over that time, we have learned to appreciate the artistry, skills, and the ingenuity of 
the early craftsman of our 18th and 19th century.  We have restored thousands of pieces of 
furniture that would have been thrown out or burned.  We have brought furniture back to life.  
We restored an old house in the Village of Florida.  We have done the same to an old mill 
building.  What we are doing today is doing it in reverse.  We are taking 21st century 
infrastructure using modern technology and safety techniques, etc…  The house itself has a 
sloped flat roof.  We are going to put a electric tank cell on there to generate electricity.  The 
house will also have solar panels for domestic hot water.  What we are trying to establish 
here is that we are putting on this infrastructure of the 21st century a façade of an earlier 
period of time.  It goes back 1000 years.  The point is that we are trying to set an atmosphere 
of instant antiquity.  At a meeting, I mentioned that I felt a blacktop driveway was not 
appropriate for what we are trying to establish here.  I am asking from you tonight a special 
request on the driveway surfacing.  I brought in a sample bag of aggregated granite.  I am 
asking that you think about us allowing using this aggregated granite instead of blacktop. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  I believe we have discussed this at the Work Session. 
 
Gary Randall:  Yes.  I think most of you were in a consensus.   
 
Mr. Astorino:  I don’t think granite would be a bad material to use as a road base.  It is hard 
stuff.  Do any Board members have any problems with that?  This is a driveway.  Is that 
correct?  It is not a private road or a common driveway.  Is that Correct? 
 
Zen Wojcik:  There is a common driveway involved.  That has been paved.   
 
Mr. Astorino:  That is paved.  This is a driveway.   
 
Zen Wojcik:  This Board would normally ask for the first 25 feet of a driveway coming off a 
paved road be paved. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Does this come onto a Town Road? 
 
 
Zen Wojcik:  No.  It is coming onto a common driveway. 
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Mr. Astorino:  It would have one home on it.  I don’t see it as a problem.  Do any Board 
members have a problem with it? 
 
Mr. McConnell:  No. 
 
Mr. Kowal:  No. 
 
Mr. Singer:  Does water pass through this granite? 
 
Gary Randall:  Yes.  It will pass through at a temperate rate.  Ice in the winter will not be as 
thick or dangerous as blacktop. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Dave, is the detail already on the map? 
 
Dave Getz:  No. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  We will add to comment #4, provide driveway detail to the Town 
Engineer’s specifications.   
 
Comment #3:  The proposed guesthouse will be located in the Ridgeline Overlay District.  
The proposed building height exceeds 25 feet.  A Sight Line Profile has been prepared 
showing that a 35 foot tall structure would not be visible from NYS Rts 94 & 17A, a scenic 
road.  Applicant requests a waiver for building height exceeding 25 feet but not to exceed 35 
feet.  Revise the map note. 
 
Dave Getz:  Ok.  I just want to confirm with that revision.  They have a draft Declaration 
under the Ridgeline that indicates a visual analysis has been accepted and the height of the 
structure shall not exceed 35 feet. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Zen, have you reviewed the visual analysis? 
 
Zen Wojcik:  Yes.  It is fine with me.  John, is it fine with you? 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Yes. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Do any Board members have any comments?  
 
Comment #4:  Provide the declaration and the recording information on the plan for 
Ridgeline Overlay Notes, Agricultural Protection Notes, and Common Driveway Use and 
Maintenance Agreement. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We will add to that comment, provide driveway detail to the Town Engineer’s 
specifications. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Delete the last portion of that comment that states common driveway use 
and maintenance agreement.  I have discussed with the applicant’s engineer that only one 
individual owns the properties at this time.  At such time, they do decide to subdivide it; it 
could be addressed at that time.   
 
Comment #5:  Pay outstanding review fees. 
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Gary Randall:  Yes. 

 
WAIVERS & EXEMPTIONS 

CODE ACTIVITY 
§164-47.1F(2) Ridgeline Overlay District, Design requirements, Restrictions on height.  

Building height may be greater than 25 feet but not to exceed 35 feet. 
  
 

 
Mr. Astorino:  Do any Board members or Professionals have any comments?  This is a public 
hearing.  If there is anyone in the audience wishing to address the Gary Randall application, please 
rise and state your name for the record? 
 
Alan Mante:  I unfortunately live under their cell tower.  I am concerned about this development.  
There are two reasons.  I own property over in Bellvale.  It is a 12-acre lot.  I have tried to subdivide 
it.  I even engaged into the same Engineer to look into that.  I was told that I could only have one 
house on the property.  I see that the Randall’s have one house already on the property.  Now, they 
are looking to put up a 2nd house on the property.  How is that permissible over there and it is not 
permissible in the Warwick Zoning on the property that I own? 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  I can’t answer that.  I haven’t seen the specifications on that.  I am not going to get 
into what is on your property in Bellvale.  This is an application for a guesthouse. 
 
Alan Mante:  Several years ago, I approached the Board and your Engineer.  I was informed that I 
could only have one house on a property and it didn’t matter what size that property was. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  You could go and pursue a guesthouse. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  If you want to have a guesthouse, that would be a separate issue. 
 
Alan Mante:  I am being told that the Zoning in Warwick permits a guesthouse on a property. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  That was as of the year 2002. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  You would have to meet certain requirements. 
 
Alan Mante:  Would this proposed guesthouse be a taxable item on the property? 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Yes. 
 
Alan Mante:  He does run an industrial park on his property.  He has a cell tower, principle 
residence, and his furniture business.  This is in a rural zoned area. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  This Board went through the whole cell tower application.  We know all about that. 
 
Alan Mante:  There are many uses on this property that doesn’t comply. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  If they are allowed in the Code and follow regulations, then that is the issue of 
granting an approval.  The same thing would be for your property. 
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Alan Mante:  Those are the objections that I wished to raise.  Thank you. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Is there anyone else wishing to address the Gary Randall application.  Let the record 
show no further public comment. 
 
Mr. Singer makes a motion for the Negative Declaration. 
 
Seconded by Mr. McConnell.  The following Resolution was carried 4-Ayes. 
 

617.12(b) 
State Environmental Quality Review (SEQR) 

Resolution Authorizing Filing of Negative Declaration 
 

 
Name of Action: Randall Guest House 
 
 Whereas, the Town of Warwick Planning Board is the SEQR Lead Agency for 
conducting the environmental review of a proposed guest house, Town of Warwick, 
Orange County, New York, and 
 
 Whereas, there are no other involved agencies pursuant to SEQR,       and 
 
 Whereas, the Planning Board has reviewed an Environmental Assessment 
Form (EAF) for the action dated 5/13/08, the probable environmental effects of the 
action, and has considered such impacts as disclosed in the EAF. 
 
 Now Therefore Be It Resolved, that the Planning Board adopts the findings 
and conclusions relating to probable environmental effects contained within the 
attached EAF and Negative Declaration and authorizes the Chair to execute the EAF 
and file the Negative Declaration in accordance with the applicable provisions of law, 
and 
 
 Be It Further Resolved, that the Planning Board authorizes the Chair to take 
such further steps as might be necessary to discharge the Lead Agency’s 
responsibilities on this action. 
 
Mr. McConnell makes a motion to close the public hearing. 
 
Seconded by Mr. Kowal.  Motion carried; 4-Ayes. 
 
Mr. McConnell makes a motion to waive §164-47.1F(2) Ridgeline Overlay District, Design 
requirements, Restrictions on height.  Building height may be greater than 25 feet but not to exceed 
35 feet due to the visual analysis that we received. 
 
Seconded by Mr. Singer.  Motion carried; 4-ayes. 



Page 29 of 58 Town of Warwick Planning Board Minutes August 20, 2008  
 
Mr. Kowal makes a motion on the Gary Randall application, granting Site Plan Approval and 
Special Use Permit for the construction and use of a guesthouse located within the Ridgeline 
Overlay District, situated on tax parcel S 19 B 1 L 47.2; project located on the western side of 
Route 94 driveway is 500+ feet north of Minturn Road, in the MT zone, of the Town of 
Warwick, County of Orange, State of New York,  A Negative Declaration was adopted on 
8/20/08.  Site Plan Approval and Special Use permit subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The proposed guesthouse will be located in the Ridgeline Overlay District.  The proposed 
building height exceeds 25 feet.  A Sight Line Profile has been prepared showing that a 
35 foot tall structure would not be visible from NYS Rts 94 & 17A, a scenic road.  
Applicant requests a waiver for building height exceeding 25 feet but not to exceed 35 
feet.  Revise the map note. 

2. Provide the declaration and the recording information on the plan for Ridgeline Overlay 
Notes, Agricultural Protection Notes.  Provide driveway detail to Town Engineer’s 
specifications. 

3. Pay Outstanding Review Fees. 
 

Seconded by Mr. Singer.  Motion carried; 4-Ayes. 
 
Dave Getz:  Thank you. 
 
Gary Randall:  Thank you. 
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Review of Submitted Maps: 
 

Marco Giovannoli 
 
Application for Final Approval of a proposed 3-Lot subdivision, situated on tax parcel S 
12 B 3 L 33; parcel located on the northern side of Little Brooklyn Road 830± feet east of 
County Route 1, in the AI zone, of the Town of Warwick, County of Orange, State of 
New York.  The proposed subdivision was classified by the Town of Warwick Planning 
Board, as Lead Agency under the State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQR), as 
an Unlisted Action.  Public Hearing was closed at the 7/16/08 Planning Board meeting 
with written comment period open (14)-days until 7/30/08.  Continued from the August 
6, 2008 Planning Board meeting. 
 
Representing the applicant:  Dave Getz from Lehman & Getz Engineering.  Marco 
Giovannoli, applicant. 
 
The following review comments submitted by Tectonic: 
 
1. Board to discuss SEQR. 
2. Applicant to discuss project. 
3. Applicant has proposed a private road as access for Lots 1, 2 & 3.  Applicant requests a 

waiver for 18-foot-wide roadway width.  Revise typical road section as requested by the 
Board: 20-foot wide paved apron (at Little Brooklyn Road) 25-feet long, pervious 
pavement for remainder of road.  Board to discuss waiver from the specification for Open 
Area Roads.   

4. Note the limit of the private road and the beginning of driveways. 
5. Revise the Typical Driveway Pavement Section to show a pervious pavement. 
6. Trees are noted within the sight distance triangles shown on sheet 3.  Revise the sight 

triangle calculation for a “stop” condition before entering Little Brooklyn Road, and 
place a “STOP” sign on the private road (provide a detail).  If the trees are still within the 
sight triangles, remove per Town Planner’s advice. 

7. Show how runoff will be managed at the site.  Indicate a rain garden in the “sump” area 
and provide a design per revised NYSDEC Stormwater Management Design Manual. 

8. Place the standard Lighting Note on the plans. 
9. Provide a copy of the submitted NOI. 
10. Provide the declaration and the recording information on the plan for Aquifer Protection 

Overlay Notes, Private Road Use and Maintenance Agreement Notes, and Agricultural 
Drainage Easement Notes.  Revise the Aquifer Protection Overlay Notes to the current 
standard. 

11. Certify setting of iron pins. Surveyor to certify that iron rods have been set at all property 
corners. 

12. Propose a name for the private road; applicant to provide 9-1-1 addressing. 
13. Provide a dedication strip along Little Brooklyn Road. 
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14. Pay performance bond and construction inspection fee for private road, stormwater 

management facilities, and erosion control. 
15. Pay parkland fees. 
16. Pay outstanding review fees. 

 
WAIVERS & EXEMPTIONS 

CODE ACTIVITY 
§A168 Attachment 2 Spec. for Open Area Development Roads – Waiver from typical road 

section (20 feet in width and 5 foot shoulders).  Applicant requests 18 
foot roadway width, pervious pavement. 

  
 
 
The following comment submitted by the Conservation Board: 
 
Marco Giovannoli – None submitted. 
 
The following comment submitted by the ARB: 
 
Marco Giovannoli – None submitted. 
 
 

Comment #1:  Board to discuss SEQR. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  This SEQR comment has been prepared by Mr. Ted Fink, dated 8/20/08:  
“The Planning Board, acting as the SEQR Lead Agency on this Subdivision Plan application, 
issued a Negative Declaration on July 16,2008.  No further SEQR action needs to be taken.” 

 
Comment #2:  Applicant to discuss project. 
 
Dave Getz:  We appeared at the 8/6/08 Planning Board meeting.  We received some 
comments.  We discussed several of the comments with Zen.  We have not submitted revised 
plans yet, but we have addressed some of your concerns. 
 
Comment #3:  Applicant has proposed a private road as access for Lots 1, 2 & 3.  Applicant 
requests a waiver for 18-foot-wide roadway width.  Revise typical road section as requested 
by the Board: 20-foot wide paved apron (at Little Brooklyn Road) 25-feet long, pervious 
pavement for remainder of road.  Board to discuss waiver from the specification for Open 
Area Roads.   
 
Mr. Astorino:  This is due to less impact on the site.   
 
Zen Wojcik:  Mr. Chairman, we need to have a discussion about pervious pavement.  Since 
the last meeting, Mr. Getz has done some research on this matter.  There are several types of 
pervious pavement that could be used that Mr. Getz was able to find.  However, the prices 
that have been quoted are 2 to 3 times of what the cost of a normal road would be.  I have a 
design for a mixed pervious pavement that could be installed by a contractor (from the 
University of New Hampshire.)  It is not that much of a difference than a type of a road that  
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anyone else would install except the mix is different.  However, I can’t find any contractor 
around here that would be willing to do that or a quarry that would make the asphalt. 
 
Mr. Singer:  Since when was it your job to look for a contractor? 
 
Zen Wojcik:  We decided that we were going to try to clarify this issue for the Board.  Dave 
and I both made a couple phone calls on this matter.   
 
Mr. Singer:  What about this granite that we talked about on the Randall application? 
 
Dave Getz:  That is an item 4 type of material. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  That is a gravel road.  If you want to have a gravel road, then fine.  This Board 
has done that in special circumstances of allowing an applicant to come in and after much 
discussion allowing him to have a gravel road.  It would work pretty good.  It always worked 
good as long as you didn’t have a lot of traffic and you have people committed to it. 
 
Mr. Singer:  What would a snowplow do to that? 
 
Zen Wojcik:  It would rip it up.   
 
Mr. Astorino:  Here is the issue.  As far as the drainage, I know we put it there for a pervious 
surface to collect some water.  That is one issue.  Are we confident that if it is a blacktop 
driveway the runoff would be controlled and maintained? 
 
Zen Wojcik:  One of the things we could do, in lieu of that the pervious pavement, because 
this is such a small impact…, we want to try to retain as much water going into the ground as 
we can to recharge the aquifer if we can.  We would want to have a crowned roadway to be 
16 feet wide.  Instead of having 1-foot shoulders on each side, we would have 3-foot 
shoulders on each side with full depth stone pavement going into it.  It would be stone that 
would be 12” deep.  Now, the water would run off and go into the stone.  That would go 
more rapidly into the aquifer.  That is the general idea that we want to have.  It is not as good 
as what a pervious pavement would be.   
 
Mr. Astorino:  But, it would be a stable surface.  
 
Dave Getz:  Yes. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  It would be a stable surface. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  It would basically be doing what we are asking to do. 
 
Mr. Kowal:  On the profile of the stone shoulders, you could have some type of geo-tech 
style fabric to prevent any silting into it. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  That would be a very good idea.  Could you put something to that effect?  
Could you put a note to that effect? 
 
Dave Getz: Yes.   
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Mr. McConnell:  Do you think it would accomplish 90% of what we were hoping to 
accomplish? 
 
Zen Wojcik:  Yes. 
 
Dave Getz:  We also expanded the small area past the driveway. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Is that the rain garden area? 
 
Dave Getz:  Yes. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  Dave has provided the calculations.  We had a meeting about that.  They 
actually made the rain garden larger because we took into account some of the discussions 
that occurred at the last public hearing where people were telling us about water coming off 
the road.  It is probably a little over-designed, but it is better to be over than under. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Yes. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  We will add to comment #3, revise road detail to Town Engineer’s 
specifications. 
 
Dave Getz:  I have one question about the width.  What we showed up to this point was a 16-
foot paved with 1-foot shoulders.  That became and 18-foot road.  Are we still saying that 16 
feet is passable?  
 
Mr. Astorino:  It would be 16 feet paved and with 3-foot stone shoulders on each side to that 
detail to Zen’s specifications. 
 
Dave Getz:  Ok. 

 
Comment #4:  Note the limit of the private road and the beginning of driveways. 
 
Dave Getz:  We will clarify that. 
 
Comment #5:  Revise the Typical Driveway Pavement Section to show a pervious pavement. 
 
Dave Getz:  Yes. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We will add to that comment, to Town Engineer’s specifications. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  Let’s be specific here beyond that to show pervious shoulders to Town 
Engineer’s specifications. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  The driveways are flat.  If the Board wanted to have that as gravel pavement, 
that would help the drainage situation that we have on the site.  I don’t see any problems with 
it.  But, if the Board would rather have it paved, then pave it. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  The common driveway.  That is 16 feet asphalt pavement.  That is what we 
agreed to. 
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Zen Wojcik:  That is the common driveway.  At the end of the common driveway, there are 2 
driveways going off to the outside where the houses are.  They could either be paved or they 
could be graveled driveways if the Board wants. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Just pave it. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  Ok. 
 
Comment #6:  Trees are noted within the sight distance triangles shown on sheet 3.  Revise 
the sight triangle calculation for a “stop” condition before entering Little Brooklyn Road, and 
place a “STOP” sign on the private road (provide a detail).  If the trees are still within the 
sight triangles, remove per Town Planner’s advice. 
 
Dave Getz:  Ok. 
 
Comment #7:  Show how runoff will be managed at the site.  Indicate a rain garden in the 
“sump” area and provide a design per revised NYSDEC Stormwater Management Design 
Manual. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We just discussed that. 
 
Mr. Singer:  What is a rain garden? 
 
Zen Wojcik:  I had pictures of the rain garden the last time we had a meeting.  A rain garden 
is a little garden area.  That is what it looks like.  It is designed so water could get into it.  
There is a pervious area with gravel underneath it.  On top of it are flowers that are planted.   
 
Mr. Singer:  This way the water would go down. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  The water is directed into it.   
 
Dave Getz:  This design is a water quality feature that help; filter out some of the 
contaminants in stormwater... 
 
Zen Wojcik:  That is what we are trying to do because this water is heading towards the black 
dirt. 
 
Comment #8:  Place the standard Lighting Note on the plans. 
 
Dave Getz:  Ok. 
 
Comment #9:  Provide a copy of the submitted NOI. 
 
Dave Getz:  Will do. 
 
Comment #10:  Provide the declaration and the recording information on the plan for Aquifer 
Protection Overlay Notes, Private Road Use and Maintenance Agreement Notes, and 
Agricultural Drainage Easement Notes.  Revise the Aquifer Protection Overlay Notes to the 
current standard. 
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Dave Getz:  Ok. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  John, are there notes that we could add for the rain garden?  Have we done 
rain gardens? 
 
Zen Wojcik:  We have stormwater management notes.  They are for typical SWPPP type of 
facilities.  It should be along the same line as a rain garden. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Dennis, what I do is incorporate that within the driveway Use & 
Maintenance Agreement.  It also includes all the drainage structures and features.  If there are 
any SWPPP facilities, which this is in the nature of. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  Ok.  It is in the nature of.  That was why I wanted to call the attention to 
this matter. 
 
Comment #11:  Certify setting of iron pins. Surveyor to certify that iron rods have been set at 
all property corners. 
 
Dave Getz:  Ok. 
 
Comment #12:  Propose a name for the private road; applicant to provide 9-1-1 addressing. 
 
Dave Getz:  Ok. 
 
Comment #13:  Provide a dedication strip along Little Brooklyn Road. 
 
Dave Getz:  Due to well in front, we would like to propose a 15-foot dedication strip. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  John, would that be ok? 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Yes.  Let comment #13 read, provide a dedication strip. 

 
Comment #14:  Pay performance bond and construction inspection fee for private road, 
stormwater management facilities, and erosion control. 
 
Dave Getz:  Ok. 
 
Comment #15:  Pay parkland fees. 
 
Dave Getz:  Ok. 
 
Comment #16:  Pay outstanding review fees. 
 
Dave Getz:  Ok. 
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WAIVERS & EXEMPTIONS 

CODE ACTIVITY 
§A168 Attachment 2 Spec. for Open Area Development Roads – Waiver from typical road 

section (20 feet in width and 5 foot shoulders).  To 16’ asphalt with 3’ 
pervious shoulders. 

  
 
 
Mr. McConnell makes a motion to waive §A168 Attachment 2, Spec. for Open Area 
Development Roads – Waiver from typical road section (20 feet in width and 5 foot shoulders), 
to 16’ asphalt with 3’ pervious shoulders. 
 
Seconded by Mr. Singer.  Motion carried; 4-Ayes. 
 
Mr. McConnell makes a motion on the Marco Giovannoli application, granting final approval 
was for a proposed 3-Lot subdivision, situated on tax parcel S 12 B 3 L 33; parcel located on the 
northern side of Little Brooklyn Road 830± feet east of County Route 1, in the AI zone, of the 
Town of Warwick, County of Orange, State of New York.  The proposed subdivision was 
classified by the Town of Warwick Planning Board, as Lead Agency under the State 
Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQR), as an Unlisted Action.  Subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. Applicant has proposed a private road as access for Lots 1, 2 & 3.  Applicant requests a 
waiver for 18-foot-wide roadway width.  Revise typical road section as requested by the 
Board: 20-foot wide paved apron (at Little Brooklyn Road) 25-feet long, pervious 
pavement for remainder of road.  Board to discuss waiver from the specification for Open 
Area Roads.  Revise road detail to Town Engineer’s specifications.   

2. Note the limit of the private road and the beginning of driveways. 
3. Revise the Typical Driveway Pavement Section to show a pervious pavement. 
4. Trees are noted within the sight distance triangles shown on sheet 3.  Revise the sight 

triangle calculation for a “stop” condition before entering Little Brooklyn Road, and 
place a “STOP” sign on the private road (provide a detail).  If the trees are still within the 
sight triangles, remove per Town Planner’s advice. 

5. Show how runoff will be managed at the site.  Indicate a rain garden in the “sump” area 
and provide a design per revised NYSDEC Stormwater Management Design Manual. 

6. Place the standard Lighting Note on the plans. 
7. Provide a copy of the submitted NOI. 
8. Provide the Declaration and the Recording Information on the plan for Aquifer Protection 

Overlay Notes, Private Road and Use and Drainage Maintenance Agreement Notes, and 
Agricultural Drainage Easement Notes.  Revise the Aquifer Protection Overlay Notes to 
the current standard. 

9. Certify setting of iron pins. Surveyor to certify that iron rods have been set at all property 
corners. 

10.  Propose a name for the private road; applicant to provide 9-1-1 addressing. 
11. Provide a dedication strip along Little Brooklyn Road. 
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12. Pay Performance Bond and Construction Inspection Fee for Private Road, Stormwater 

Management Facilities, and Erosion Control. 
13. Pay Parkland Fees. 
14. Pay Outstanding Review Fees. 
 
Seconded by Mr. Singer.  Motion carried; 4-Ayes. 
 
Dave Getz:  Thank you. 
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Mary Tavolacci 
 

Application for Sketch Plat Review of a proposed 1-Lot (Minor) subdivision, situated on tax 
parcel S 41 B 1 L 11; project located in the Points of View side of approximately 1200 feet 
south of Waterbury Road (16 Points of View), in the RU zone, of the Town of Warwick.  
Previously discussed at the October 3, 2007 Planning Board meeting. 
 
Connie Sardo:  We received a letter from John Ziobro from Stage, Nathans & Ziobro, LLP., 
dated 8/18/08 addressed to the Planning Board and Zoning Board of Appeals and received 
on 8/19/08.  The letter is stated as follow: 
 
Dear Mr. Astorino and Mr. Jansen: 
 
Please be advised that all applications of Mary Tavolacci for Planning Board and a 280-a 
variance, are hereby being voluntarily withdrawn. 
 
We are requesting to be taken off your agenda. 
 
Thank you for your cooperation at this time. 
 
Very truly yours,  
Stage, Nathans & Ziobro, LLP. 
 
John E. Ziobro 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Ok.  The Mary Tavolacci application has been withdrawn. 
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Michael Petersen 
 

Application for Site Plan Approval for the construction and use of house renovation 
located within “A Designated Protection Area” of Greenwood Lake, situated on tax 
parcel S 74 B 5 L 52; project located on the southern side of Woodland Terrace 130± 
feet south of Jersey Avenue (12 Woodland Terrace), in the SM zone, of the Town of 
Warwick. 
 
Representing the applicant:  Dave Getz from Lehman & Getz Engineering.  Michael 
Petersen, Applicant. 
 
The following review comments submitted by Teconic: 
 

1. Board to discuss SEQR. 
2. Applicant to discuss project. 
3. Provide a calculation showing that the proposed expansion of the building does not 

exceed 15% of the existing ground area of the building.  Provide a calculation showing 
that the proposed lot coverage (driveway + parking area + all building footprints) does 
not exceed 30%. 

4. Show the location of existing dwellings on either side of this parcel. 
5. Note that the existing well shall be abandoned to OCHD standards. 
6. The applicant stands before the ZBA seeking variances for yards and setbacks and seeks 

the recommendation of the Planning Board.  Board to discuss. 
7. Clarify “common gravel driveway”. 
8. A proposed aerobic system is shown.  Provide details.  Also provide sufficient detail at 

the Site Plan to show how the aerobic system is to be incorporated into the existing septic 
disposal system. 

9. Provide photos of the site for Planning Board reference. 
10. On the architectural plan, show the height of the proposed building, as defined by the 

Town Code (§164-22).  Include an elevation view of the existing dwelling, similarly 
noting its height.  On the Foundation Plan, label or otherwise clearly define which 
portions of the existing building foundation are to remain. 

 
The following comment submitted by the Conservation Board: 
 
Michael Petersen – None submitted. 
 
The following comment submitted  by the ARB: 
 
Michael Petersen – None submitted. 
 
 

Comment #1:  Board to discuss SEQR. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  This SEQR comment has been prepared by Mr. Ted Fink, dated 8/20/08:  
“This is an Unlisted Action and the Zoning Board of Appeals is the only other Involved 
Agency.  My understanding is that the applicant is currently before the Zoning Board.  If the 
requested variances are granted, then the Planning Board can address SEQR at that time.  
There is no need to address SEQR now for that reason.” 
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Comment #2:  Applicant to discuss project. 
 
Michael Petersen:  What I am doing is that my house is a cantilevered dwelling.  What I am 
trying to do is draw down the cantilevered portion of the house to bring it down to the 
foundation that would essentially square it out so that it would no longer be cantilevered.  I 
have a couple of small push outs.  One is on the street side, which is about a 4-foot push out.  
There is another small push out on the southern exposure.  Other than that, we are 
maintaining the same size as the existing dwelling.  We can’t maintain the existing 
foundation because unfortunately the house was built roughly in 1907.  It has a rubble 
foundation.  It is extremely fragile.  What I would like to do is dig out and create a 
basement/cellar area.  I am located on a hill.  That would give me a walk out on the lakeside 
of the house. 
 
Dave Getz:  In addition to the renovation/rebuilding of the house, we are proposing to 
connect to the municipal water system.  Right now, the house is served by a private well.  In 
terms of sewage disposal, there is a septic system towards the lakeside of the property 
somewhere within that steep slope.  No one is sure of the size or the exact type of system.  
We had done a dye test in April.  It passed the dye test.  To play it safe, we are proposing an 
aerobic treatment unit to be added that will send treated water to the same system that exists 
today.   
 
Mike Petersen:  I know where it is going.  I don’t know where it would end up. 
 
Dave Getz:  Yes.  It would be easy to connect into.  With the change to the house, there 
would be no additional bedrooms.  It will stay as a 3-bedroom house. 
 
Mike Petersen:  We are also proposing a garage.  There is no existing garage at that location.  
What we would like to do is turn this into a permanent residence for retirement purposes.  
We need a garage for one vehicle storage. 
 
Dave Getz:  The applicant has been before the ZBA.  They seem to have a positive reaction 
to the application.  They were waiting for a letter from O.C. Planning, so they did not act that 
night.  The ZBA is also asking for the Planning Board’s input on making a recommendation 
to the ZBA.  There are two variances needed that relate to side setbacks and the garage being 
up front close to the front property line. 
 
Mike Petersen:  I have spoken to my neighbor at the property line where we are very close to.  
Originally, we proposed to setting away from his garage.  He had a concern.  He appeared at 
the ZBA meeting.  It might impair his ability to access and work on his side of the garage.  
We agreed at the suggestion of the ZBA to create a party wall for that garage so we would 
adjoin them.  We had a meeting at the site on Sunday.  We discussed some changes that 
might be desirable.   
 
Mr. Astorino:  Ok.  What you are looking from us is a recommendation to the ZBA? 
 
Dave Getz:  Yes. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  How does the Board feel about a recommendation to the ZBA? 
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Zen Wojcik:  Mr. Chairman, I couldn’t encourage the Board to make a positive 
recommendation without clarifying if they have exceeded the ground area.   
 
Dave Getz:  We have a colored up plan and calculations to show that we are under the 30%. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  Does this include all the buildings shown on the site? 
 
Dave Getz:  Yes.  We are under the 30%. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  What is the timing on the next ZBA meeting on this? 
 
Connie Sardo:  It would be September 22, 2008. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We could take care of that for you.  There is no need to do that tonight.   
 
Mr. McConnell:  We could discuss this at the 9/8/08 Work Session. 
 
Comment #3:  Provide a calculation showing that the proposed expansion of the building 
does not exceed 15% of the existing ground area of the building.  Provide a calculation 
showing that the proposed lot coverage (driveway + parking area + all building footprints) 
does not exceed 30%. 
 
Dave Getz:  We will provide that. 
 
Comment #4:  Show the location of existing dwellings on either side of this parcel. 
 
Dave Getz:  Ok. 
 
Comment #5:  Note that the existing well shall be abandoned to OCHD standards. 
 
Dave Getz:  Ok. 
 
Comment #6:  The applicant stands before the ZBA seeking variances for yards and setbacks 
and seeks the recommendation of the Planning Board.  Board to discuss. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We have done that. 
 
Connie Sardo:  I will put that on the 9/8/08 Work Session. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Yes. 
 
Dave Getz:  Ok. 
 
Comment #7:  Clarify “common gravel driveway”. 
 
Dave Getz:  It is a shared gravel driveway. 
 
Mike Petersen:  We happen to have our driveways right next to each other.  We both use 
gravel at the present time. 
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Zen Wojcik:  The Town has a regulation for common driveways. 
 
Mike Petersen:  We don’t share.  My property is my property.  We just happen to use the 
same gravel. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  Is your driveway wide enough to be used so that you are not relying on this 
part of the driveway? 
 
Mike Petersen:  Yes. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  It just happens to be two driveways next to each other. 
 
Comment #8:  A proposed aerobic system is shown.  Provide details.  Also provide sufficient 
detail at the Site Plan to show how the aerobic system is to be incorporated into the existing 
septic disposal system. 
 
Dave Getz:  Will do. 
 
Comment #9:  Provide photos of the site for Planning Board reference. 
 
Dave Getz:  Yes. 
 
Comment #10:  On the architectural plan, show the height of the proposed building, as 
defined by the Town Code (§164-22).  Include an elevation view of the existing dwelling, 
similarly noting its height.  On the Foundation Plan, label or otherwise clearly define which 
portions of the existing building foundation are to remain. 
 
Mike Petersen:  The existing foundation because of the nature of it being rubble, we are 
going to excavate this basement.  We would have to eliminate the entire rubble foundation so 
that we could put in a block or poured foundation. 
 
Dave Getz:  It is the same location. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  Dave, you know what we are concerned about? 
 
Dave Getz: Yes. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Dave, regarding comment #8 with the aerobic system, you will have to 
provide an annual maintenance contract to the Building Department. 
 
Dave Getz:  Ok. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We will discuss this at the Work Session about the ZBA. 
 
Mr. Singer:  The plan that you just showed us, could you bring that to the Work Session? 
 
Dave Getz:  Yes.  We will submit it before that. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Let Zen get a review of that. 
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Dave Getz:  Yes. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Does the Board want to set this for a public hearing? 
 
Mr. Astorino:  John, why don’t we go through the Work Session first? 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  You would have to have an additional meeting, if you don’t set it for a 
public hearing. 
 
Dave Getz:  We request to be set for a public hearing now. 
 
Mike Petersen:  My hope would be to build through the winter rather than the summer.   
 
Mr. Astorino:  If the Board wants to set it for a public hearing, I don’t have a problem with 
that. 
 
Mr. Singer makes a motion to set the Michael Petersen application for a public hearing 
at the next available agenda. 
 
Seconded by Mr. McConnell.  Motion carried; 4-Ayes. 
 
Dave Getz:  Thank you. 
 
Mike Petersen:  Thank you.  
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Anthony and Sumira Mazza Subdivision 
 

Application for Sketch Plat Review of a proposed 2-Lot (Minor) subdivision, situated on 
tax parcel S 29 B 1 L 36; parcel located on the northeasterly side of Pine Island Turnpike 
500 feet northwesterly side of Jessup Road, in the RU zone, of the Town of Warwick. 
 
Representing the applicant:  John McGloin, PLS. 
 
The following review comments submitted by Tectonic: 
 

1. Board to discuss SEQR. 
2. Applicant to discuss project. 
3. Applicant is proposing to subdivide a lot with two existing dwellings.  The two resultant 

lots require ZBA area variances.  Board to discuss recommendation. 
4. The Bulk Table must include the use classification as well as the use group requirements. 
5. Driveways shall be designed and constructed in compliance with Section A168-19 of the 

Town Code.  Pave the first 25 feet of driveways. 
6. Place a Lighting Note on the plans: “All outdoor lights shall be designed, located, 

installed, and directed in such manner as to prevent objectionable light at and across the 
property lines, and to prevent direct glare at any location on or off the property.  The 
prohibitions and requirements listed in Section 164-43.4 of the Town Code shall apply to 
all proposed and existing outdoor lighting fixtures.” 

7. Show the location of the well for the building on proposed Lot No. 2.  The adjacent 
parcel is occupied by a County DPW maintenance yard where road salt was once stored 
uncovered.  Test all drinking water wells for salinity and provide a water sample testing 
report to the Town Engineer. 

8. Pay outstanding review fees. 
 

 
The following comment submitted by the Conservation Board: 
 
Anthony and Sumira Mazza Subdivision – None submitted. 
 
The following comment submitted by the ARB: 
 
Anthony and Sumira Mazza Subdivision – None submitted. 
 
 

Comment #1:  Board to discuss SEQR. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  This SEQR comment has been prepared by Mr. Ted Fink, dated 8/20/08:  
“This is an Unlisted Action and the Zoning Board of Appeals is the only other Involved 
Agency.  My understanding is that the applicant is currently before the Zoning Board.  If the 
requested variances are granted, then the Planning Board can address SEQR at that time.  
There is no need to address SEQR now for that reason.” 
   
 
Comment #2:  Applicant to discuss project. 
 
 



Page 45 of 58 Town of Warwick Planning Board Minutes August 20, 2008  
 
John McGloin:  The Mazza’s are proposing to subdivide approximately a 4.4-acre parcel into 
2 Lots.  There are already 2 existing homes on the property.  One of the homes was renovated 
extensively.  There are pre-existing driveways.  There is one pre-existing well and two 
existing septic systems. 
 
Comment #3:  Applicant is proposing to subdivide a lot with two existing dwellings.  The 
two resultant lots require ZBA area variances.  Board to discuss recommendation. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  What size is the lot now?  What size do the 2 lots intend to be? 
 
John McGloin:  I would like to interject a little.  If you look at the vicinity map, you will see 
that a 2-acre lot would not be out of place in this neighborhood.  Everything surrounding it is 
about 2 acres or less.  The vicinity map clearly shows that.  The subdivision for the rear was 
done at a time when it was 2-acre zoning.  A lot of the other existing lots are much smaller 
that are around there. 
 
Mr. Singer:  What is the zoning on this parcel? 
 
John McGloin:  Currently, it is 4-acre zoning.  It is the RU zone. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  How does the Board feel about a ZBA recommendation?  Do you want to 
discuss it at the Work Session? 
 
Mr. McConnell:  I would like to discuss it at the Work Session. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We will put it on the 9/8/08 Work Session. 
 
John McGloin:  Ok. 
 
Comment #4:  The Bulk Table must include the use classification as well as the use group 
requirements. 
 
John McGloin:  No problem. 
 
Comment #5:  Driveways shall be designed and constructed in compliance with Section 
A168-19 of the Town Code.  Pave the first 25 feet of driveways. 
 
John McGloin:  Ok. 
 
Comment #6:  Place a Lighting Note on the plans: “All outdoor lights shall be designed, 
located, installed, and directed in such manner as to prevent objectionable light at and across 
the property lines, and to prevent direct glare at any location on or off the property.  The 
prohibitions and requirements listed in Section 164-43.4 of the Town Code shall apply to all 
proposed and existing outdoor lighting fixtures.” 
 
John McGloin:  I will put the note on the plan. 
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Comment #7:  Show the location of the well for the building on proposed Lot No. 2.  The 
adjacent parcel is occupied by a County DPW maintenance yard where road salt was once 
stored uncovered.  Test all drinking water wells for salinity and provide a water sample 
testing report to the Town Engineer. 
 
John McGloin:  Proposed lot #2 does not currently have a well on it.  Both houses supply 
from the same well.  Mr. Mazza told me that there was a test done on a well.  It was only a 
bacterial test.  That was the only thing he had done before he moved in.  He told me that he 
had this company, Aquarius Water Conditioning come in and test the water.  They said that it 
was ok.  This was without any test results.  We will have to get the test results. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Get to us the test results.  Would you be putting in another well on the other 
property?  You would need that one tested as well. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  They only have one well right now.  That well should be tested.  We could 
have a note on the plan stating that any new well would have to be tested for salinity.  There 
was an uncovered salt pile next door. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We will put a note on there to reflect that. 
 
John McGloin:  I will look at the subdivision across the street to figure out some notes. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  Zen, the salt that County DPW stored there, would that be all that might 
have leached from that salt? 
 
Zen Wojcik:  As far as we know.  This was a yard that they used for maintenance of the road 
to this area.  They had uncovered salt piles. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  I think it might be prudent to test for something beyond salinity. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  Are you thinking about some other hazardous materials? 
 
Mr. McConnell:  I don’t know what else might have been there.  I don’t know if they mixed 
anything with the salt. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Zen, pull out the Turkey Farm file to see how extensive the testing was.  I 
don’t think anything else came up in it.  There was extensive testing done within that area by 
the County for remediation.  I just don’t recall the extent of it. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We will take a look at the Turkey Farm. 
 
Mr. Singer:  Has the County ever used chemicals to kill the weeds along the roadside? 
 
Mr. Astorino:  I don’t believe so. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  This was primarily for salt storage. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  I just don’t know if something was mixed in to extend the salt. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  They usually don’t mix within a pile. 
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Kirk Rother:  We only tested for salt on the Turkey Farm. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Ok.  We will check it out anyway. 
 
Comment #8:  Pay outstanding review fees. 
 
John McGloin:  Ok. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We will discuss at the 9/8/08 Work Session about a ZBA recommendation. 
 
John McGloin:  Ok.  Thank you. 
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Cardiac Care Systems, Inc. 
 
Application for Sketch Plat Review of a proposed 7-Lot (Major) plus 1-Lot of Open 
Space Conservation Density Subdivision, entitled, “Cascade Road Subdivision”, 
situated on tax parcel S 53 B 1 L 8; parcel located on the northerly side of Cascade 
Road 710± feet east of Cascade Park Road, in the MT zone, of the Town of Warwick.  
Previously discussed at the March 5, 2008 Planning Board meeting. 
 
Representing the applicant:  Abe Chitsaz from Zimmerman Engineering. 
 
The following review comments submitted by Tectonic: 
 

1. Board to discuss SEQR. 
2. Applicant to discuss project. 
3. Board to discuss site visit. 
4. Provide calculations for rip rap sizing for the pipe coming into the forebay. Also revise 

the peak flow used to size the rip-rap in worksheet under Appendix G. Note that these 
items should be sized for the 10-year storm event. 

5. Proposed culverts should be sized for 10-year storm event. Revise worksheet under 
Appendix F. 

BEFORE FINAL APPROVAL: 
6. Provide 9-1-1 addressing. 
7. Provide a signed copy of the NOI.  Applicant to provide signed and sealed copy of the 

final revised SWPPP. 
8. Certify setting of iron pins. Surveyor to certify that iron rods have been set at all property 

corners and stone cairns at the corners of conservation areas, as directed by the Town 
Engineer. 

9. Provide the declaration and the recording information on the plan for Ridgeline Overlay 
Notes and Radon Reduction Notes. 

10. Provide the declaration and the recording information on the plan for Common Driveway 
and Private Road and Drainage Use and Maintenance Agreement. 

11. Pay performance bond and construction inspection fee for private road, stormwater 
management facilities, and erosion control. 

12. Pay parkland fees. 
13. Pay outstanding review fees. 
 
 
The following comment submitted by the Conservation Board: 
 
Cascade Road Subdivision – None submitted. 
 
The following comment submitted by the ARB: 
 
Cascade Road Subdivision – None submitted. 

 
Comment #1:  Board to discuss SEQR. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  This SEQR comment has been prepared by Mr. Ted Fink, dated 8/20/08:  
“The Planning Board has already declared itself Lead Agency for this Unlisted Action.  To 
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date, additional information gas been requested under the Board’s SEQR review, which the 
applicant has complied with.  The next step is for the Board to schedule a field visit to the 
site.” 

 
Comment #2:  Applicant to discuss project. 
 
Abe Chitsaz:  Since the last meeting, we met with the Town Engineer.  We took care of all 
the technical comments from the Town Engineer and Planner.  The remaining comments are 
very minor.     
 
Mr. Astorino:  Good. 
 
Comment #3:  Board to discuss site visit. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  What is good for the Board?  We could do it Monday before the Work Session 
at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  Ok. 
 
Mr. Singer:  Ok. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We will schedule the site visit for Monday, 9/8/08 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Abe Chitsaz:  Ok. 

 
Comment #4:  Provide calculations for rip rap sizing for the pipe coming into the forebay. 
Also revise the peak flow used to size the rip-rap in worksheet under Appendix G. Note that 
these items should be sized for the 10-year storm event. 
 
Abe Chitsaz:  Ok. 
 
Comment #5:  Proposed culverts should be sized for 10-year storm event. Revise worksheet 
under Appendix F. 
 
Abe Chitsaz:  Ok. 
 

BEFORE FINAL APPROVAL: 
Comment #6:  Provide 9-1-1 addressing. 
 
Abe Chitsaz:  Ok. 
 
Comment #7:  Provide a signed copy of the NOI.  Applicant to provide signed and sealed 
copy of the final revised SWPPP. 
 
Abe Chitsaz:  Ok. 
 
Comment #8:  Certify setting of iron pins. Surveyor to certify that iron rods have been set at 
all property corners and stone cairns at the corners of conservation areas, as directed by the 
Town Engineer. 
 
Abe Chitsaz:  Yes. 
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Comment #9:  Provide the declaration and the recording information on the plan for 
Ridgeline Overlay Notes and Radon Reduction Notes. 
 
Abe Chitsaz:  Ok. 
 
Comment #10:  Provide the declaration and the recording information on the plan for 
Common Driveway and Private Road and Drainage Use and Maintenance Agreement. 
 
Abe Chitsaz:  Yes. 
 
Comment #11:  Pay performance bond and construction inspection fee for private road, 
stormwater management facilities, and erosion control. 
 
Abe Chitsaz:  Ok. 
 
Comment #12:  Pay parkland fees. 
 
Abe Chitsaz:  Ok. 
 
Comment #13:  Pay outstanding review fees. 
 
Abe Chitsaz:  Yes.  Could we be set for a public hearing? 
 
Mr. Astorino:  Not yet.  Let us see what you have out there. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Do you just want to set it?  If it is not up to speed, we won’t put them on for 
a public hearing. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  Most of the comments have been taken care of. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We could set them for a public hearing. 
 
Mr. Singer makes a motion to set the Cardiac Care Systems, Inc. / Cascade Road 
Subdivision for a Preliminary public hearing at the next available agenda. 
 
Seconded by Mr. Kowal.  Motion carried; 4-Ayes. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  We need a dedication strip.  Provide offer of dedication for 25-foot strip 
from the center of the road.  There will be a lieber page that will be recorded. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  John, it is shown on the plan for a dedication strip. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  We need it as a comment for the Town Board to accept the offer of 
dedication. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  Ok. 
 
Abe Chitsaz:  Thank you. 
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Webster Plaza/Robert Schreibeis, Jr. 
 
Application for Site Plan Approval and Special Use Permit for the construction and use of a 
proposed 5,000 square foot Mixed Use/Retail Space, situated on tax parcel S 13 B 2 L 2; 
project located on the western side of Pulaski Highway, in the LB zone, of the Town of 
Warwick.  Previously discussed at the May 21, 2008 Planning Board meeting. 
 
Representing the applicant:  Kirk Rother, Engineer.  Rob Schreibeis, Jr., Applicant. 
 
The following review comments submitted by Tectonic: 
 

1. Board to discuss SEQR. 
2. Applicant to discuss project. 
3. The SBL of the parcel in question is incorrect; revise.  Note the sections, blocks and lots 

of adjoining properties. 
4. Note the date of the referenced survey (General Note 5). 
5. Provide the full text of Special Conditions on the plans. 
6. Show the intersection of Schoolhouse Lane and County Route 6. 
7. Per the Site Plan Checklist, provide architectural drawings including floor plans, exterior 

elevations (including building height as defined by the Town Code), and an indication of 
the type and color of materials proposed for use. 

8. Provide a sidewalk cross-section detail.  Clarify the location, height and material of 
curbs.  Provide a driveway/parking lot cross-section detail. 

9. An eating and drinking establishment is proposed as a potential use for 1500 sf of the 
building.  The proposed well can be classified as either NTNC or NCWS under the NYS 
Sanitary Code.  Location and construction of the well must comply with OCHD Public 
Water Supply Wellhead Protection Guidelines.  Show the 200-foot radius wellhead 
protection area on the plan.  Provide a letter report detailing how the well will be in 
compliance. 

10. Show a conceptual drainage plan for the site. 
11. The calculation for the sewage disposal system on sheet 1 does not include the accessory 

apartment.  The calculation for the sewage disposal system on sheet 5 is for a 4 bedroom 
residence and does not include the proposed commercial use.  Provide one calculation for 
the proposed sanitary disposal system including all proposed uses for the proposed 
building. 

12. Provide an isofootcandle drawing of the parking lot showing that light intensity does not 
exceed an average of 2.4 footcandles, as permitted by the Town Code.  Provide cut sheets 
of proposed lighting fixtures noting the lamp type and wattage. 

13. The proposed sign does not meet the requirements for signs in the LB zone.  Provide 
details for all proposed signs. 

 
The following comment submitted by the Conservation Board: 
 
Webster Plaza – None submitted. 
 
The following comment submitted by the ARB: 
 
Webster Plaza – None submitted. 
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Comment #1:  Board to discuss SEQR. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  This SEQR comment has been prepared by Mr. Ted Fink, dated 8/20/08:  
“The Planning Board has already declared itself Lead Agency for this Unlisted Action.  
There are several SEQR issues raised in the review comments composed by Tectonic.  The 
principal outstanding issues are compliance with the Town Design Guidelines lighting, and 
water supply.” 

 
Comment #2:  Applicant to discuss project. 
 
Comment #3:  The SBL of the parcel in question is incorrect; revise.  Note the sections, 
blocks and lots of adjoining properties. 
 
Kirk Rother:  We will correct that. 
 
Comment #4:  Note the date of the referenced survey (General Note 5). 
 
Kirk Rother:  Will do. 
 
Comment #5:  Provide the full text of Special Conditions on the plans. 
 
Kirk Rother:  Ok. 
 
Comment #6:  Show the intersection of Schoolhouse Lane and County Route 6. 
 
Kirk Rother:  Yes. 
 
Comment #7:  Per the Site Plan Checklist, provide architectural drawings including floor 
plans, exterior elevations (including building height as defined by the Town Code), and an 
indication of the type and color of materials proposed for use. 
 
Kirk Rother:  Right. Mr. Schreibeis had provided an elevation to the Board.  I believe you 
reviewed it at a workshop. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  It didn’t have a dimension regarding the height. 
 
Kirk Rother:  We will add that.  The same engineer is currently working on the floor plan.  
You will have it for the next meeting. 
 
Mr. Astorino: Ok.    
 
Comment #8:  Provide a sidewalk cross-section detail.  Clarify the location, height and 
material of curbs.  Provide a driveway/parking lot cross-section detail. 
 
Kirk Rother:  Zen, it is shown on the left side of sheet 2.  If it is not on your plan, we will get 
that to you.   
 
Comment #9:  An eating and drinking establishment is proposed as a potential use for 1500 
sf of the building.  The proposed well can be classified as either NTNC or NCWS under the 
NYS Sanitary Code.  Location and construction of the well must comply with OCHD Public 
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Water Supply Wellhead Protection Guidelines.  Show the 200-foot radius wellhead 
protection area on the plan.  Provide a letter report detailing how the well will be in 
compliance. 
 
Kirk Rother:  Right.  We were aware of the potential well issues.  The building less the 
restaurant does not hit any of the thresholds for a community water supply.  The restaurant 
itself puts the well into the threshold for a public water supply.  It does not meet the 
minimum separation criteria to a septic system.  However, there are other ways to mitigate 
that.  It is typically done by increasing the length of the well casing.  I spoke to Mr. Sims at 
the OCHD to initiate some dialogue with him as to whether they would accept that type of 
mitigation.  If they don’t accept that, we will have to eliminate the restaurant portion of the 
site.  Mr. Sims in on vacation this week.  We don’t have any written correspondence back 
from him yet.  I expect to have that by the next workshop. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Do they take the casing to bedrock and upgrade it? 
 
Kirk Rother:  No.  They take the casing about 100 to 150 feet.  Basically, we are creating the 
200-foot separation by virtue of how deep the casing is underground. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Ok.   
 
Comment #10:  Show a conceptual drainage plan for the site. 
 
Kirk Rother:  We have grading and arrows on here.   
 
Zen Wojcik:  We will take a look at. 
 
Kirk Rother:  We can’t do any piping and catch basins.  That would drive all of our drainage 
down.  We don’t have any place to discharge it. 
 
Zen Wojcik:  There is also drainage shown on the roadway.  That is another issue that I will 
want to discuss with you. 
 
Kirk Rother:  Ok.   
 
Comment #11:  The calculation for the sewage disposal system on sheet 1 does not include 
the accessory apartment.  The calculation for the sewage disposal system on sheet 5 is for a 4 
bedroom residence and does not include the proposed commercial use.  Provide one 
calculation for the proposed sanitary disposal system including all proposed uses for the 
proposed building. 
 
Kirk Rother:  Will do.  We added the 4-bedroom use towards the end.  We neglected to 
accommodate for that in our sewage disposal system.  Looking at that, it triggers another 
threshold which is over 1,000 gallons per day for SPDES.  Mr. Schreibeis does not want to 
pursue a SPDES permit.  In the event that a restaurant is not permitted, we are in the clear.  If 
we have the restaurant, we will not be able to accommodate a 4-bedroom residence.  It would 
most likely become a 2-bedroom residence. 
 
Comment #12:  Provide an isofootcandle drawing of the parking lot showing that light 
intensity does not exceed an average of 2.4 footcandles, as permitted by the Town Code.  
Provide cut sheets of proposed lighting fixtures noting the lamp type and wattage. 
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Kirk Rother:  Will do. 
 
Comment #13:  The proposed sign does not meet the requirements for signs in the LB zone.  
Provide details for all proposed signs. 
 
Kirk Rother:  Ok.  Ours is too large.  We request to be set for a public hearing. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  You will have to get the County information before hand to us. 
 
Kirk Rother:  Yes. 
 
Mr. Singer makes a motion to set the Webster Plaza / Robert Schreibeis, Jr., 
application for a public hearing at the next available agenda. 
 
Seconded by Mr. McConnell.  Motion carried; 4-Ayes. 
 
Kirk Rother:  Thank you. 
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Other Considerations: 
 

1. Ludmerer/Masker Fruit Farm – Letter from Kirk Rother, Engineer, dated 7/28/08, 
received on 8/1/08 addressed to the Planning Board – in regards to Masker Fruit Farm 
requesting a 6th Month Extension on Final Approval of a proposed 6-Lot cluster 
subdivision, SBL # 53-1-20 & 35.  Final Approval was granted on 2/20/08.  The 
applicant’s attorney is still in the process of preparing legal documentation. The 6-Month 
Extension becomes effective on, 8/20/08. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  Did they make any representation as to which legal documentation? 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  The condition of the approval, I believe there is an offer of a dedication 
strip and some declarations.  I don’t think the applicant is in no urgency to get this 
subdivision approved and start paying taxes on these lots because of the soft market. 
 
Mr. McConnell:  On the other hand, we are interested in getting these as separate tax lots. 
 
Mr. Bollenbach:  Yes. 
 
Mr. McConnell makes a motion on the Ludmerer/Masker Fruit Farm application, granting 
a 6th Month extension on final approval of a proposed 6-Lot cluster subdivision, SBL #53-
1-20 & 35.  Final Approval was granted on 2/20/08.  The 6th Month Extension becomes 
effective on, 8/20/08. 
 
Seconded by Mr. Kowal.  Motion carried; 4-Ayes. 
 

2. Black Meadow Club – Planning Board to discuss “Re-Approval” Site Plan Approval. 
 
Mr. McConnell makes a motion on the Black Meadow Club application for “Re-
Approval” of Site Plan Approval. 
 
Seconded by Mr. Singer.  The following Resolution was carried 4-Ayes. 
 

RESOLUTION GRANTING SITE PLAN APPROVAL 
 FOR BLACK MEADOW CLUB 

 
WHEREAS, an application was made to the Planning Board of 

the Town of Warwick for approval of a site plan and timber 
harvest permit application by Black Meadow Club (the 
“applicant”) for the construction and use of a chain link fence 
running a total of 4,100 feet and clearing over ¼ acre in the 
Ridgeline Protection Overlay District; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject site consists of two tax map parcels 
in the Town of Warwick identified on the tax map as section 23, 
block 1, and lots 2 and 30(SBL 23-1-2 & 23-1-30), both parcels 
located within the Town’s Ridgeline Protection Overlay District; 
and  
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 WHEREAS, under the Town Zoning Code Section 164-41C(4)(f) 
fences may be erected anywhere on a lot and site plan approval 
is not required; however, the applicant must obtain site plan 
and timber harvest permit approval for clearing in excess of 1/4 
acre for the installation of the fence in the Ridgeline Overlay 
District; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the applicant has submitted a complete 
Environmental Assessment Form (“EAF”) pursuant to the New York 
State Environmental Quality Review Act (“SEQRA”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, during the course of the Planning Board’s review 
of the Applicant’s proposed site plan and timber harvest permit 
application, the Planning Board received and considered 
correspondence from the public as well as the Town’s 
consultants;  
 
 WHEREAS, a duly advertised public hearing on the 
application for site plan and timber harvest permit approval was 
held on July 18, 2007, September 19, 2007, November 21, 2007, 
and December 19, 2007, and those wishing to be heard were given 
the opportunity to be heard;  
 
 WHEREAS, on January 16, 2008, the public hearing on the 
application for site plan and timber harvest permit approval was 
closed;  
 
 WHEREAS, the application and related materials were 
submitted to the Orange County Department of Planning (“OCDP”) 
for its review pursuant to the requirements of the General 
Municipal Law §239-m, and OCDP responded on July 13, 2007 
recommending local determination; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Board has observed the site, 
evaluated credible evidence and carefully considered all of the 
comments raised by the public, the Board’s consultants, and 
other interested agencies, organizations and officials, 
including those presented at numerous meetings of the Board as 
well as those submitted separately in writing;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Board has required modifications to 
the applicant’s original application, including the type and 
color of the fence, reduction in the height of the fence, 
requiring the fence be installed four inches above the ground 
surface to allow for the passage of small animals, limitation on 
the vegetation to be cleared for the fence installation, 
limiting the placement of fence posts in proximity to large 
trees and requiring supplemental plantings along Silvertail 
Road; and  
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 WHEREAS, the Planning Board has heretofore determined that 
the Proposed Action minimizes or avoids significant 
environmental impacts and, adopted a Negative Declaration on 
January 16, 2008, which is attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference; and    
 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Planning Board finds that the applicant 
has satisfied the requirements of the Town Code for site plan 
and timber harvest permit approval and approves the application 
subject to the following findings, terms and conditions:   
 

1. The use of SBL 23-1-2 as a hunting preserve is a 
lawful use of the property which has existed prior to 
adoption of zoning restrictions. Under the current 
zoning, the applicant is not required to apply for and 
obtain a special use permit for this use. SBL 23-1-30 
was acquired by the applicant after the adoption of 
zoning restrictions and, therefore, such property may 
not be used as a hunting preserve unless the applicant 
applies to the Planning Board and obtains site plan 
and special use permit approval to extend the use to 
that parcel. The applicant has agreed that this 
property will not be used for hunting preserve 
purposes and must provide a map note on the plan 
stating the following:  There shall not be an annual 
membership club providing outdoor recreational 
facilities such as private playgrounds, golf clubs, 
swimming pools, tennis courts, fishing and hunting 
preserves and trap and skeet shooting (General Use 
#73) on SBL 23-1-30 without approval from the Town of 
Warwick Planning Board. 

 
2. Pursuant to the Town Zoning Code Section 164-

41C(4)(f), a fence is an accessory structure which may 
be erected anywhere on a lot regardless of the use of 
the property and site plan approval is not required.  
The fence installation does not extend, enlarge or 
expand the use of the property.   

3. The applicant has complied with the requirements for a 
Timber Harvest Permit per §164-47.1F(3)(c)[2][a] by 
providing all required and necessary information and 
notes on the plans. The applicant shall obtain all 
building department permits for tree clearing and 
fence construction prior to commencement of work.  

4. The applicant shall include a location map showing SBL 
(tax map) information and clarify the affected lots.  

5. The applicant shall provide the Declaration and the 
recording information on the plan for Ridgeline 
Overlay notes. Note the recordation date and provide a 
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copy of the recording receipt to the Planning Board 
Attorney. 

6. The applicant shall post a performance bond and pay 
required construction inspection fee for tree clearing 
and mitigation landscaping, in the amount of 
$14,150.00 and $566.00, respectively.  

7. The applicant shall pay outstanding review fees.    
 
 BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED, the applicant has complied with the 
above findings and conditions.   

 
 

3. Planning Board Minutes of 8/6/08 – Planning Board Minutes of 8/6/08 for Planning 
Board Approval. 
 
Mr. McConnell makes a motion to Approve the 8/6/08 Planning Board Minutes. 
 
Seconded by Mr. Singer.  Motion carried; 4-Ayes. 
 

4. Draft Comprehensive Plan – Planning Board to discuss scheduling a special meeting 
regarding the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  We have the Draft Comprehensive Plan in our packets.  The Town Board is 
going to have a public hearing on that on September 15, 2008.  The Town Board would 
like us to review it and get back to them with some comments on it.  On Tues., 9/9/08 at 
7:30 p.m. we have the workshop room available for us to meet and discuss the Draft 
Comprehensive Plan.  Is the Board ok to meet on Tues., 9/9/08 at 7:30 p.m. to discuss this 
matter? 
 
Mr. McConnell:  Yes. 
 
Mr. Singer:  Yes. 
 
Mr. Kowal:  Yes. 
 
Mr. Astorino:  The Board members and Professionals will meet on Tuesday, 9/9/08 at 
7:30 p.m. at the workshop room to discuss the Draft Comprehensive Plan. 

 
 
Privilege Of The Floor For Agenda Items!! 
 
Mr. Astorino:  If there is anyone in the audience wishing to address any of the agenda items, please rise 
and state your name for the record.  Let the record show no public comment. 
 
Mr. McConnell makes a motion to adjourn the August 20, 2008 Planning Board meeting. 
 
Seconded by Mr. Singer.  Motion carried; 4-Ayes. 
 

 
 
 


